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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM (“GEM”) OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to
which a higher investment risk may be attached

than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential
risks of investing in such companies and should
make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally
small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to
high market volatility than securities traded on the main
board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given
that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded
on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the "Directors”) of Viva China
Holdings Limited (the “Company” or “Viva China", which together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM ("GEM
Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard
to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief
the information contained in this report is accurate and complete
in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive and there
are no other matters the omission of which would make any
statement herein or this report misleading.
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RESULTS

During the six months ended 30 June 2018, the Group’s
consolidated revenue increased significantly from HK$137.5
million in the corresponding period in prior year to HK$649.3
million this year, representing a significant increase of 372.2%.
The increase in revenue was mainly driven by improvement in the
contribution from both the sports segment and the community
segment, in particular, revenue were generated from the new
commercial contracts entered into with customers in the fourth
quarter of 2017 and the first half of 2018. Gross profit in the
period under review was HK$94.9 million (the corresponding
period in 2017: HK$16.0 million), which represented a
significant increase of HK$78.9 million or 493.1% as compared
to the same period last year. The significant increase in gross
profit was in line with the revenue improvement in both the sports
and community segments.

The Group'’s other income and other gains — net in the first

half of 2018 amounted to HK$14.8 million (the corresponding
period in 2017: HK$20.4 million). Other income and other gains
— net during the period was mainly attributable to government
grants of HK$10.0 million (the corresponding period in 2017:
HK$16.9 million) and interest income.

Selling and distribution expenses for the first half of 2018
amounted to HK$22.1 million (the corresponding period in
2017: HK$8.1 million), which represented a significant increase
of HK$14.0 million or 172.8% as compared to the same period
in prior year. The increase was mainly due to additional marketing
and promotional expenditures incurred as a result of new
sponsorship and marketing related services provided in relation
to a top-tier professional basketball league in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) during the period, which was in
line with our business expansion.
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Administrative expenses and other operating expenses
(“Administrative Expenses”) incurred in the reporting period
amounted to HK$62.1 million (the corresponding period

in 2017: HK$93.7 million). The decrease in Administrative
Expenses was primarily attributable to the decrease in non-cash
share option expenses. The non-cash items in Administrative
Expenses, which amounted to HK$9.3 million (the corresponding
period in 2017: HK$52.0 million), mainly included share options
expenses of HK$5.9 million (the corresponding period in 2017:
HK$38.9 million), foreign exchange loss and depreciation of
fixed assets, etc. The decrease in non-cash items was mainly
attributable to the decrease in share options expenses and

fair value loss during the period. Excluding these major non-
cash items, Administrative Expenses in the period under review
would be HK$52.8 million (the corresponding period in 2017:
HK$41.7 million) which represented an increase of HK$11.1
million as compared to the same period in prior year. The
increase was mainly due to the increment of staff costs as a
result of business expansion of the Group.

Finance costs for the period amounted to HK$39.9 million (the
corresponding period in 2017: HK$45.9 million). The decrease
in finance costs was primarily attributable to the decrease in
average bank and other loans balance during the period as
compared to the corresponding period in prior year.

Li Ning Company Limited (“Li Ning Co”) is accounted for as an
associate of the Group. The Group has adopted the provision
contained in HKAS 28 whereby it is permitted to include the
attributable share of associate's results based on the financial
statements drawn up to a non-coterminous period end where
the difference must be no greater than three months. During the
period, the Group shared the results of Li Ning Co based on its
adjusted financial results for the six months ended 31 March
2018 and adjusted for any significant events or transactions
for the period from 1 April 2018 to 30 June 2018. There is
no non-coterminous period end for other associates and joint
ventures.
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During the six months ended 30 June 2018, the Group shared
the profits less losses of associates and joint ventures amounting
to HK$94.7 million (the corresponding period in 2017: share

of losses (net of loss on deemed partial disposal of HK$67.7
million) of HK$17.5 million). The turnaround was the combined
result of improvement in the associates’ operations and no
deemed partial disposal loss in the current period.

During the six months ended 30 June 2018, the Group has
recorded a net profit attributable to equity holders of HK$68.6
million comparing to a net loss attributable to equity holders of
HK$134.5 million for the corresponding period in 2017. The
significant turnaround was mainly due to the improvement in our
revenue and gross profit, improvement in the share of profits less
losses of associates and joint ventures and reduction in non-cash
Administrative Expenses and finance costs.

SEGMENT

Community Development

Community Development segment comprises business of
property development for sales and investment, research and
development, manufacturing, marketing and sales of construction
materials, operation of sports parks and sports centres, provision
of sports and physical rehabilitation services and consultancy,
development of communities and provision of community
development consultancy and subcontracting services.
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The Group has been dedicating its effort to promote a

sportive and healthy lifestyle in the community. Echoing the
PRC government's strategy to promote nationwide physical
fitness, the Group actively seeks cooperation with different
prospective contracting parties, including local governments,
property development companies, construction and landscaping
companies, and established financial institutions. The Group

has been selecting suitable cooperation opportunities to invest
in and operate potential community development projects,
including sports community and sports parks, and sports-related
commercial opportunities that promote healthier living and sports
awareness in the PRC. The Group will continue to invest in the
development of and related opportunities in sports communities
with enormous growth prospects in the PRC. It is the Group’s
long-term strategy to build a comprehensive community
development network, including both hardware and software
elements, in order to develop high quality, environmentally-
friendly and profitable communities. We trust that the expected
vertical and horizontal expansion and integration of this business
segment will generate values for our shareholders in the long
run.

In July 2015, the Group had successfully acquired the land

use right with a site area of approximately 23,334 square
meters for a total consideration of approximately RMB168.4
million (equivalent to approximately HK$210.2 million). The land
is located in Guangling New Town, Yangzhou city of Jiangsu
province of the PRC, northwest of the intersection of Binshui
Road and Jianmin Road, and adjacent to the Yangzhou Li Ning
Sports Park. Yangzhou Li Ning Sports Park is the first sports park
managed and operated by the Group.
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In November 2017, the Group had secured the operating and
management rights for the Linyi Li Ning Sports Centre which

is located at the centre of Linyi city of Shandong province

of the PRC. Linyi Li Ning Sports Centre aims to provide the
neighbourhood with various sports-related facilities and services.
Officially managed and operated by the Group since January
2018, Linyi Li Ning Sports Centre has started to generate
additional revenue to the Group.

In May 2018, the Group had entered into the operating and
management agreement for the Ningbo Hangzhou Bay Li Ning
Sports Park. Located in Hangzhou Bay New Zone, Ningbo city
of Zhejiang province of the PRC, and managed and operated by
the Group, Ningbo Hangzhou Bay Li Ning Sports Park has started
to generate additional revenue to the Group and broadened the
Group’s community development network.

The Group has also entered into cooperation framework
agreements in respect of the development of sports parks and/
or community development projects with the local governments
and their related entities of Kunming, Jiaxing, Linyi and Zhuzhou
in the PRC. The Group will continue to pursue this as one of

its development strategies and expect the expansion of this
business segment to gather pace as a result.
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The community development segment generated revenue

of HK$454.0 million (the corresponding period in 2017:
HK$81.4 million) during the six months ended 30 June 2018,
which represents a significant increase of HK$372.6 million

or 457.7% as compared to the corresponding period in prior
year. In particular, the operation of sports parks recorded an
encouraging growth of 132.5% during the period, as driven

by the increase in sports parks rental income and sales of
merchandise. The segment revenue was mainly derived from
the sales of construction materials, community development
consultancy services and sports parks operations as the Group
expanded its business network in tandem with the development
of this segment. The Group’s strategy is to expand into the
upstream and downstream industry networks as an integral part
of further build-out of our community development business.
We actively expanded and optimised the construction materials
business network and managed to establish good working
relationships with various construction materials suppliers and
customers, so as to lay a solid foundation for the construction of
and investment in community development projects in different
regions and cities. Taking into account the expenses incurred

in respect of potential community development projects, this
segment reported an operating profit of HK$26.4 million (the
corresponding period in 2017: operating profit of HK$2.2
million) during the period. The increase was mainly due to the
improvement in sales of construction materials and community
development consultancy service income compared with the
corresponding period in prior year.
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Sports

The sports segment continued its business which encompasses
production and coordination of sports competitions and events,
sports talent management, and provision of sports-related
marketing and consultancy services. During the period under
review, our sports segment generated revenue of HK$195.3
million (the corresponding period in 2017: HK$56.1 million),
representing a significant increase of 248.1%, which was mainly
attributable to the new sponsorship and marketing related
services provided in relation to a top-tier professional basketball
league in the PRC. The sports segment recorded an operating
profit of HK$31.8 million (the corresponding period in 2017:
operating profit of HK$1.1 million). The increase in operating
profit was mainly attributable to the improvement in gross
profit, but was partially offset by the increase in advertising and
promotional expenditures.

The Group continued to provide talent management services
for commercial engagements for individual athletes and national
teams. The Group has succeeded in realising the commercial
values of our managed sports talents by arranging them to
participate in selected and diversified commercial activities and
gaining public exposure. It is the Group’s strategy to drive the
establishment of an integrated sports platform by leveraging the
existing resources of its sports business. The Group will therefore
continue its effort to capture and maximise the commercial
values of the sports resources under our management, and
encourage social participation in sporting activities through
commercial management of popular sporting events and
competitions, sports talent management, as well as providing
sports marketing and consulting services, and engaging in
community development with a sports theme.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Financial Position

Net assets of the Group as at 30 June 2018 was HK$4,090.2
million compared to HK$4,038.5 million as at 31 December
2017. The increase was mainly due to the net profit, the
proceeds from issue of ordinary shares upon exercise of share
options, equity-settled share option arrangements, acquisition of
a subsidiary and share of an associate’s reserve, but was partially
offset by the exchange translation difference during the period.

The total non-current assets of the Group increased from
HK$3,793.4 million as at 31 December 2017 to HK$3,853.6
million as at 30 June 2018. The increase was mainly brought
about by the share of profits of associates and joint ventures and
the goodwill and intangible assets arose from the step acquisition
of a subsidiary during the period.

Net current assets of the Group at the end of the reporting period
decreased by HK$16.7 million or 1.6% as compared to that as
at 31 December 2017. As at 30 June 2018, the Group had
cash and bank balances totalling HK$607.9 million (As at 31
December 2017: HK$521.0 million).

Liquidity and Financial Resources

During the first half of 2018, the Group’s net cash inflow from
operating activities was HK$30.8 million compared to net cash
outflow used in operating activities of HK$117.8 million during
the corresponding period in 2017. The decrease in operating
cash outflow was mainly due to the increase in collection of
other receivables, increase in receipts in advance and other
changes in working capital during the period. The net cash inflow
from investing activities was mainly attributable to the proceeds
received from disposal of investment properties during the
period. The net cash inflow from financing activities was mainly
attributable to the proceeds from issue of shares upon exercise
of share options, but partially offset by the interest payments
during the period.
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During the six months ended 30 June 2018, 38,168,000
ordinary shares with nominal value totalling HK$1.9 million were
issued upon exercise of certain share options for consideration
totalling HK$20.6 million.

The total cash and bank balances as at 30 June 2018 was
HK$607.9 million (As at 31 December 2017: HK$521.0
million). The Group has obtained bank facilities of HK$460
million (As at 31 December 2017: HK$468.0 million), of which
HK$40.0 million has been utilised as at 30 June 2018 (As at
31 December 2017: HK$40.0 million). The Group’s gearing
ratio was approximately 0.05 (As at 31 December 2017: 0.06)
as at 30 June 2018. The Group defines gearing ratio as ratio of
net debt over equity plus net debt, in which net debt represents
total bank and other borrowings less cash and bank balances.
The current ratio (ratio of current assets to current liabilities)

of the Group as at 30 June 2018 was about 4.0 (As at 31
December 2017: 4.6). The directors consider the Group’s
gearing level and liquidity position were very healthy as at the
reporting date. It is the Group'’s strategy to maintain a healthy and
effective gearing ratio in a range of O to 1.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Financial Management and Policy and Foreign Currency
Risk

The Group'’s finance division at its headquarters in Hong Kong
manages the financial risks of the Group. One of the key
objectives of the Group’s treasury policies is to manage its
exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates. It is
the Group’s policy not to engage in any speculative activities. As
the Group operates primarily in Hong Kong and the PRC, most of
the revenue and trading transactions are settled in either HK$ or
RMB. Accordingly, the majority of the Group’s net current assets
were denominated in either HK$ or RMB. Deposits placed in
various banks are mainly denominated in these two currencies.
The Group maintains its proportion of deposits in RMB and HK$
in line with its future business and investment plans. The policies
in place to manage foreign currency risk have been followed by
the Group for several years and are considered to be effective
with the current foreign currency risk still manageable. The Group
has assessed its foreign exchange rate risk exposure and has not
entered into any foreign exchange hedging arrangement during
the period under review and as at the reporting date.

Charge on Deposit

As at 30 June 2018, interests in an associate with carrying
amount of approximately HK$847.4 million (as at 31 December
2017: HK$867.5 million) had been charged as security for a
bank borrowing of a subsidiary and convertible notes issued by
the Company.
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Employees and Remuneration Policies

Staff remuneration comprised of monthly salaries, mandatory
provident fund contributions, medical benefits, housing benefits,
education allowances and discretionary share options issued
based on their contribution to the Group. Staff costs (including
Directors’ remuneration) for the period ended 30 June 2018
amounted to HK$34.9 million (the corresponding period in
2017: HK$49.7 million). The Group also engages professional
consultants to ensure the competitiveness of the remuneration
policy which, in turn, would support the business growth of the
Group. As at 30 June 2018, the Group employed 367 full-time
employees (31 December 2017: 248) and their remuneration
was calculated with reference to the market rates.

Material Transactions

In June 2018, the Group completed the step acquisition of 20%
equity interest in IEAERE (BB ) BERRERERA
Al (‘JEFL{ERS") for a consideration of approximately HK$14.6
million. The Group's interest in 3£ FL12 B increased from 50%
to 70% and FE JL 1= B changed from a joint venture to a
subsidiary of the Group. The acquisition was made as part of the
Group’s strategy to expand the sports and physical rehabilitation
business. Four outlets of “Dr. Chen Sports & Rehab Center” are
currently in operation in Chaoyang District and Tongzhou District
of Beijing, Linyi Li Ning Sports Centre and Yangzhou Li Ning
Sports Park.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
FNPBEERBERRLS
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RBERAN EEEAN -HEEH
FEEHASEEERMBITZHE
ERE-#EZE_T—N\F~<A=+AH
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R LAREAR Bl T8 BB F 0 2 3 B IECR DA
THASREZEBER - R_Z—N\F
NAZTH AEEERIAR(ZE
—tF+-A=+—H:248%) 2HBE
B BEZHEMIHRENHBKEETE -

BERAXRS

RZZE—NFERA KEBTKDEER
WHEIEAZE (RS EFREERE
RAaE ([IESLEBEE]) 220%R% 4 - (&
£4914,600,000/8 7T ° A& E R IELIER
2 HEZEH50%IE INZE70% FEL R —
MAEECEZAAEBZHNBAR A
REUREE Th B A AN IR SR BB AE AE R
EIERE 2 — 25 - MR [FRIG L E2AE
BEEFO] BAiD BRI REEk5E &iB
MIE BT EEESH T L RIGNTERE
FEEE-



PROSPECTS

Over the first half of 2018, the Group strived to accelerate

its community development business, and actively engaged

in ongoing negotiations with various local governments and
business partners of Beijing, Shanghai, the Guangdong-Hong
Kong-Macao Bay Area, Suzhou, Xi'an, Hangzhou, Tianjin, Hefei,
Jinan, Nanning and Jingzhou, etc, in a bid to invest and build Li
Ning Sports Centres, Li Ning Sports Parks, sports communities,
sports towns as well as related community development projects
across the country. Other than Yangzhou Li Ning Sports Park
and Linyi Li Ning Sports Centre, Ningbo Hangzhou Bay Li Ning
Sports Park is currently under the management and operation
of the Group. Located in Hangzhou Bay New Zone, Ningbo city
of Zhejiang province, Ningbo Hangzhou Bay Li Ning Sports

Park offers an array of professional sports facilities, including
a sports complex built with a 50-meter standard swimming
pool, a multifunctional gymnasium equipped with basketball

and badminton courts, swimming pools, fitness centers, football
pitches, tennis courts, sports equipment retailer and ancillary
commercial services. During its trial operation in June, the sports
park hosted community football and basketball matches as well
as family fun sports, amongst others. Ningbo Hangzhou Bay Li
Ning Sports Park will keep ramping up its sports-related and
ancillary commercial services to meet the needs of the loca
community, such as offering various physical coaching and
training courses and recreational activities to boost sports-related
leisure consumption and promote national physical fitness. From
a long-term perspective, such offerings can also help raising the
popularity of sports in the neighbourhood and make sports a
daily routine in people’s lives.
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In respect of its sports business, the Group continued to provide
sponsorship and marketing-related services in relation to certain
basketball leagues. Moreover, we have turned “Li Ning 10K
Running League” into a running carnival “Fun Run Festival” this
year. The running event incorporated different elements such as
a 10K race, a family run, steeplechase experience and creative

marketplace. By featuring a running carnival comprised of sports,

entertainment elements and product experience all rolled into
one, the running event aims to boost the number, category
and participation of the event participants, and to create higher
commercial value for the sponsoring brands. The running event
took place in Wuhan, Shanghai and Kunming during the first
half of 2018, and will extend to other cities successively in the
second half of the year. Further, the Group was engaged in the
coordination and marketing promotion for “Star Wars Run”, a
sci-fi movie-themed running event, which took place in May
2018.

Looking forward, the Group will continue to integrate our sports
resources with properties, leisure consumption, tourism-related
services, fitness and healthcare consumables, education and
fraining, and culture and entertainment to enhance operation of
our sports competitions and events, and to push forward the
development of sports venues and expand its related network
in the second half of 2018, so as to foster an environment for
leisure and sports consumption, enrich users’ sports-related
experience and create new additive commercial opportunities to
ultimately deliver maximum value to our shareholders and the
communities.
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Ythindited Condensed (Consolidated Wrsille:

The board of directors (the “Board”) announces the unaudited
condensed consolidated results of Viva China Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the periods
from 1 April 2018 to 30 June 2018 and from 1 January 2018
to 30 June 2018 together with the comparative unaudited
condensed consolidated results for the corresponding periods in
2017 as follows:

INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED

RBFEHBREA LS

Exg([EFg)EUAMmIERLT
ERERAB ([RRAF]) REMBL
A(IREEDR-_Z—-N\FEOA—H
EE-N\FRA=ZTERZZ-NF
—A-BEZZ-N\FRA=THLH
Mz RABEZEARE XS ER_-_F
—tFRPZARERERARAEEA L
LT

THEAGSEERAMEEK

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER 3 &
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the three and six months ended 30 June 2018 BE-ZT— )/ \FARNA=Z+HLE=Z@AK

~ME A

For the three months ended
30 June

HERA=THL=MA
2018 2017
“E-\f ZB-+t%
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER)

For the six months ended
30 June

HBEAA=THLEAMA

2018 2017
“E-\f ZB-+t%
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEHR) (REER)

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5k FHER FEL FHET FETL
Revenue W& 3 375,207 59,827 649,272 137,547
Cost of sales HERK (313,139) (52372) (554,406) (121,540)
Gross profit EYil 62,068 7,455 94,866 16,007
Other income and Hi AR
ofher gains — net Hi W& 58 3 8,576 10,062 14,795 20,403
Selling and distrioution expenses  $EE R DAY (11,544) (4,790) (22,113) (8,118)
Administrative and other operating 1T B B E- 4
£Xpenses KEBH (32,504) 41,033) (62,133) (93,741)
Finance costs BB AR 5 (21,380) 20,001) (39,886) (45,866)
Share of profits less losses of AEBEDRAR
assoclates and joint ventures REDEYL
wFHER 6 32,366 18,909 94,660 (17.454)
Profit/(loss) before BRATERARR
income tax (&8) 7 37,582 29,398) 80,189 (128,769)
Income tax FiaH 8 (6,556) 186 (11,794) (3,089)
Profit/(loss) for the period HRER
(BE#]) 31,026 (29,212) 68,395 (131,858)
Prterine Boport ZO16 + 48 %
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INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED hHEASseEEREMEZEEK

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER =k (&)

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)

For the three and six months ended 30 June 2018 HE_ZT-—NFERA=tHILE=EAR
~E A

For the three months ended For the six months ended
30 June 30 June

BEAR=THILE=EA BEAR=THILEAEA

2018 2017 2018 2017
“2-\F —E-+F C-B-\E -B-tF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER) (REER)  (REER)
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ik TEL T TEL T
Other comprehensive income/  HAt2ERE /

(l0ss): (B8):
ltems that may be reclassified HgmEnsEs
subsequently to profit or loss, B@EE 1
net of income tax of il BRETEH (&)
— Share of other AL i ik
comprenensive (oss)/ AR EM
income of an associate 20 (B#B)
V¢ (351) (117 (640) 89
~ Reclassification adjustment -REBHLE
upon deemed partial —REE
disposal of an assoclate AREEH
DERE - - - 18,439
— Exchange differences on ~BREGNER
translation of foreign LEREE
operatons (238,659) 76,241 (65,640) 117,205

Other comprehensive income/  H A H A2 E W&
(loss) for the period, net of J/(B#B) Nk

income tax of nil FaR (&) (239,010) 76,124 (66,280) 135,733
Total comprehensive income/  HiR2EKE /
(loss) for the period (BB a8 (207,984) 46,912 2,115 3875

/ "VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
6 $NocEBPRERALS
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INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED h
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER wmk (/)
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)

For the three and six months ended 30 June 2018 HE

For the three months ended
30 June

HBEANA=THLE={EA

2018 2017
ZE-\§ ZB-—t#F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER)  (KEER)

HERGERERAMEEK

RA=Z+TBEIE=EAR

For the six months ended
30 June
HBERA=ZTHLAMEA

2018 2017
“E-\f ZZ-+tf
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEHR) (REER)

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 THT FETL FHT FETL
Profit/(loss) attributable to: UT AL
W/ (FE):
Equity holders of the Company ADAERREA 31,519 (30,603) 68,589 (134,510)
Non-contralling interests FERER (493) 1,301 (194) 2,652
31,026 (29,212) 68,395 (131,858)
Total comprehensive income/ AT ALFEE2E
(loss) attributable to: W&/ (B8)
am:
Equity holders of the Company ARRERHEEA (203,572) 44,249 3,450 (765)
Non-contralling interests FERER (4,412) 2,663 (1,335) 4,640
(207,984) 46,912 2,115 3,875
Profit/(loss) per share ADREBHEEA
attributable to equity EESRERN/
holders of the Company: (B8):
Basic (HK cents) 2R (B 9 0.28 0.27) 0.61 (1.20)
Diluted (HK cents) 25 (B) 9 0.28 (0.27) 0.61 (1.20)
The accompany notes form part of these unaudited interim BERT < FIEE AN 52 5 AR IS Bz P B R 75
financial statements. Wz 2 —HH
Prterine Boport ZO16 + 48 %
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INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 30 June 2018

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Goodwill

Intangible assets

Interests in associates and
joint ventures

Derivative financial instruments

Deposits and other receivables

Deferred tax assets

R-ZE-NFRXA=+H

31 December

Notes
(i
FRBEE
ME BREREE
REME 10
EES
BRAE
REEARIRAEE D
E X 11
PTEMBIA
e REMEWKFIE 15
ELERBEEE

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEELE

CURRENT ASSETS RBEE

Stock of properties MEFE 12
Inventories FE 13

Trade debtors and bills receivable
Prepayments, deposits and

BEESEERER 14
ANFE RER

other receivables H b Y kI8 15
Cash and bank balances Re RETEH
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS TREBEELE
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade and other payables RARR K
H i EI5E 16
Accruals and receipts in advance e &R kB HIE 17
Deferred income BEIEWA
Bank loan RITER 18
Payable to a non-controlling interest <t JEFRAR E 25
Income tax payable ERMEH
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEEAE
. NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE

"VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
FNPBEERBERRLS

hHIR A AR S B AR R

2017

T—tfF

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RBER) (&ER)
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT THET
16,908 14,563
146,466 137,274
18,176 -
13,074 -
3,646,592 3,629,509
2,340 2,255
1,760 1,760
8,288 8,048
3,853,604 3,793,409
287,995 273,048
374 336
341,183 299,539
152,651 258,026
607,935 521,012
1,390,138 1,351,961
155,006 166,784
108,451 71,421
16,590 19,216
40,050 =
1,120 1,135
30,418 38,218
351,635 296,774
1,038,503 1,055,187
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INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FHIGHSE M ERRRE (E)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

As at 30 June 2018

R-ZE-N\FEXA=1H

30 June 31 December
2018 2017
—E-N\&E —E—+E
A~NA=1+H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%)
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
i3 FET FHET
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEABRTRBEE
LIABILITIES 4,892,107 4,848,596
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES *RBEE
Deferred income EEWA 14,568 21,971
Bank loan RITER 18 - 37,535
Convertible notes MHRRER 19 783,922 750,605
Deferred tax liabilities EEREEE 3,370 =
TOTAL NON-CURRENT FrRBaEes
LIABILITIES 801,860 810,111
NET ASSETS EEFME 4,090,247 4,038,485
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to equity holders AR RIRERITH A
of the Company FEMG =
Issued capital BEITRA 20 442,345 440,437
Perpetual convertible bonds KA M AR EH 1,139,046 1,139,046
Reserves fE & 2,460,875 2,423,649
4,042,266 4,003,132
Non-controlling interests JEERE 47,981 35,353
TOTAL EQUITY ERAE 4,090,247 4,038,485

The accompany notes form part of these unaudited interim
financial statements.

BaPM < M e RS P 72 S AR IE B o HRBA 7%
WERz—7D o
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X ENENEA LS

INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the six months ended 30 June 2018

THEAGSREEEBR

BE_Z-N\FRA=THI<EAAR

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
ANRERFAARS

Perpetual Share Exchange Convertible Non-
Issued Share premium convertible option fluctuation Reserve notes Accumulated controlling
capital account bonds reserve reserve funds equity reserve losses interests Total equity
KA EXKE TRREE
BRTRE IR 13 % B R ARRES BRERE i REES R A R BE FRRER BEEE
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REgER) (REEZ) (REE%) (RigER) (REE%) (REER) (REE%) (REER) (RgEr) (REREK) (REER)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET TET TET FET TET FHET TET TET TET TET
For the six months ended 30 June 2017 BE-Z-tEXA=tALAEA
Balance at 1 January 2017 RZE—+tF-A—-B2iH 438,218 4,145,239 1,139,046 125,246 (370,088) 1513 90,392 (1,851,249 3,718,317 23,445 3,741,762
(Loss)/profit for the period B (BE) /88 = = - - - - - (134,510) (134,510) 2,652 (131,858)
Other comprehensive income/{loss) for the period: BREMR2ERS/ (BB):
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations BEBGINEBCELESR - - - = 115,217 = = = 115,217 1,988 117,205
Share of other comprehensive income of an associate AEBE R Z A2 A - - - - 89 - - - 89 - 89
Reclassification adjustment upon deemed partial disposal of an associate BEDHHERLERABERDBHRE - - - - 18,439 - 5 = 18,439 5 18,439
Totel comprehensive income/loss) for the period Bn2mbes/ (BR) RS = - - - 133,745 - - (134,510) (765) 4,640 3,875
Shares issued upon exercise of share options BIRBETER BT Z R 2,019 24,716 - (6,173) - - - - 20,562 = 20,562
Equity-setiled share option arrangements AR E 2 BRER - - - 38,854 - - - - 38,854 S 38,854
Transfer of share option reserve upon the forfeiture: RERER IR ERSERBRERRE
or expiry of share options = = = (2,108) = = = 2,108 = = =
Share of an associate's reserve AEBERRZHEE - - - 5523 = 2,692 = 2,692) 5523 = 5,523
Transfer to statutory reserve BREATHE - - - - - 2,459 = (2,459) = = =
Balance at 30 June 2017 RZF—tFXA=tRHZ&EH 440,237 4,169,955 1,139,046 161,342 (236,343) 6,664 90,392 (1,988,802) 3,782,491 28,085 3,810,576
For the six months ended 30 June 2018 BE-Z-N\EXA=+tAHLAEA
Balance at 1 January 2018 RZE-N\F-A—B2##H 440,437 4,172,526* 1,139,046 160,105* (58,786)* 6,664* 90,392* (1,947,252)* 4,003,132 35,353 4,038,485
Profit for the period B A = = = o o S S 68,589 68,589 (194) 68,395
Other comprehensive income/{loss) for the period: BREMRERE (BB):
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations BEBNEBELER - - - - (64,499) - - - (64,499) (1,141) (65,640)
Share of other comprehensive income/(0ss) of an associate AEHENF A2 ERS/ (BB) - - - - (640) - - - (640) - (640)
Total comprehensive income/(oss) for the period BwR2ERE/ (FE) 88 - - - - (65,139) - - 68,589 3,450 (1,335) 2,115
Acquisition of a subsidiary L= - - - - - - - - - 13,963 13,963
Shares issued upon exercise of share options BIREETER BT 2RI 1,908 25,621 - (6,975) - - - - 20,554 - 20,554
Equity-setled share option arrangements DARR R4 B 7 AR 2 - - - 5,892 - - - - 5,892 - 5,802
Transfer of share option reserve upon the forfeture RERRER S E R ARG
or expiry of share options - - - (315) - - - 315 - - -
Share of an associate’s reserve DEBE AR - - - 9,238 - 3,123 - (3,123) 9,238 - 9,238
Transfer to statutory reserve BREATHE - - - - - 2,012 - (2,012 - - -
Balance at 30 June 2018 RZF-\ERA=tHZ&H 442,345 4,198,147* 1,139,046 167,945* (123,925)* 11,799* 90,392* (1,883,483)* 4,042,266 47,981 4,090,247

. ZEHRBREREACEXNHAE S
MHMRREANZ REERERAEHE
2,460,875,0008 7T (=T —+tF+=A
=+ —H :2,423,649,000/ 7T ) °

These reserve accounts comprise the unaudited consolidated
reserves of HK$2,460,875,000 (31 December 2017:
HK$2,423,649,000) in the unaudited condensed consolidated
statement of financial position.

BEPN 2 M FERE AR PR 5 RIS B AR b IR 7%
WKz —abo e

The accompany notes form part of these unaudited interim
financial statements.

"VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
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INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FHEHESEEESRER
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the six months ended 30 June 2018 HE-_ZT—/\FXA=+H1XMEA

For the six months ended

30 June
BEXA=t+HLAEA
2018 2017
—B—_\F  —B—LfF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REERZ) (RaesER)
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Net cash flows generated BEEESMES
from/(used in) operating activities (FFA)BEREFHE 30,816 (117,768)
Net cash flows generated BEEEBAE
from/(used in) investing activities (FFA)BAEREFE 64,620 (3,256)
Net cash flows generated BmEESME
from/(used in) financing activities (FRA)BEEREFE 440 (3,933)
Increase/(decrease) in cash and ReERREEED
cash equivalents #in,/ CRd) 95,876 (124,957)
Effect of foreign exchange INETEREB) 2 LB FE
rate changes, net (8,953) 5,521
Cash and cash equivalents at BB RkReEEY
the beginning of period 521,012 804,731
Cash and cash equivalents at HREBESRREEEY
the end of period 607,935 685,295
The accompany notes form part of these unaudited interim BER 2 B ST A % & R AS AR P BB 7%
financial statements. WMERZ—HBH

"VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
FNPBEERBERRLS
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1.  GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and the ordinary shares of which are listed on
the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”).

Principal activities
During the period, the Group was involved in the following
principal activities:

o production and distribution of sports content,
management and marketing of sports talents and provision of
sports-related marketing and consultancy services; and

o property development for sales and investment, research
and development, manufacturing, marketing and sales of
construction materials, operation of sports parks, development
of communities and provision of consultancy and subcontracting
Services.

Li Ning Company Limited (“Li Ning Co”), a company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands with limited liability, the issued shares

of which are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 2331), is an associated company of the Group,
whose principal activities include brand development, design,
manufacture, sale and distribution of sport-related footwear,
apparel, equipment and accessories in the People’s Republic of
China (the "PRC").

CITIC Land Co., Ltd (“CITIC Land"), a company incorporated

in the PRC with limited liability and a directly owned subsidiary
of CITIC Group Corporation, is an associated company of the
Group, whose principal activities include project investment, real
estate development, hotel investment and management, property
management, project contracting and real estate consultancy.

1. —REHR
ARBR—MRASEEEMKRILZE
BAfE HEBRREBEBBMARZMA
PRATE (T3P ) GEM LT -

FEEK
R AEBERE T EEER:

BENBRERRZE BEAS
BRI R RIS AETISE

. FEMERERKRE EM2H
BBE TMBSEERMEE KERE
B AEdtENARRESAED BIR
5o

ZEHRAR([ZERA]) —HR
HEeEHEdMRIZER AR EE
BOTRMRB R ERLET (BRHA
§R:2331) AAEE Yy —MBE QR H
FEEBHERERNPEAREME
(TR HEEEHEAEE R 25
MERRGZ RS- R -5
ERDHe

PREEERAT ([FEEE] —H
$eR B A 2 AR A )R o R
EREERAR R 2N EAF)
AA%EZ —MBELT AEBEY
REREEARE BHERE BE
RAEE WXEE IREABEFH
B
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1..  GENERAL INFORMATION (Continued)
Principal activities (Continued)

Shanghai Double Happiness Co., Ltd. (the “Double Happiness”),
a company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability, is an
assoclated company of the Group, whose principal activities
include manufacture, research and development, marketing and
sale of principally table tennis and badminton equipment under
its own ‘4L & = (Double Happiness)” brand and other sports
accessories.

KEHENEBEENLEEREREES (AR
A %) (Zhuhai Viva Huazhi Sport and Culture Equity Investment
Fund (Limited Partnership)*) (the “Sports Cultural Industry
Fund”), a limited partnership enterprise established in the PRC,
is a joint venture of the Group, whose principal activities include
investment in sport community development projects related to
the Li Ning sports parks, and sports, culture, and sports-related
intellectual property projects, as well as investments in private
equity funds and other investment opportunities.

*

English name for identification purpose only

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
unless otherwise stated.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

The unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial
statements for the six months ended 30 June 2018 have been
prepared to comply with the disclosure requirements of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM (“GEM
Listing Rules”) and Hong Kong Accounting Standard (‘HKAS") 34
Interim Financial Reporting issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

"VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
FNPBEERBERRLS
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

These unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial
statements do not include all the information and disclosures
required in the annual financial statements, and should be read in
conjunction with the Group’s annual financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2017, which have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (the
"HKFRSs").

The accounting policies used in the preparation of the unaudited
condensed consolidated interim financial statements are
consistent with those adopted in preparing the annual audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017.

In the current interim period, the Group has applied, for the first
time, the following new and revised HKFRSs for the preparation
of the Group’s condensed consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

The adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs in the current
interim period has had no material impact on the amounts
reported in these condensed consolidated financial statements
and/or disclosures set out in these condensed consolidated
financial statements.
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2..  BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The following is a new HKFRS that has been published and
are relevant and mandatory for the Group’s accounting periods
beginning after 1 January 2018 or later periods, but have not

been early adopted by the Group.

2. mMAUEENEITBRERED
(&)

mBEE (F)

AT REAEERBENDEAMBER
SE T N\F-HA-HZERRNE
St HA R Bk B ik B 9 R A BUIE 1 R
REBRFPRANMA] B EU B IRELE
Al

Effective for accounting KT B#%
periods beginning ZERBRZ
on or after BHHBER

HKFRS 16, Leases

Details of the assessment of the impact of this new HKFRS on
the results and financial position of the Group can be referred to
Note 2.2 in “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” of the

BEMBREENF 6% HE

Company’s 2017 annual report.

The Group intends to apply the simplified transition approach and
will not restate comparative amounts for the year prior to first
adoption. The Group will continue to assess the further impacts
of this new HKFRS before the effective date of this new HKFRS.

"VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
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3. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER 3. WE HakAREMKE
GAINS — NET FE
For the three months ended For the six months ended
30 June 30 June
BEAAZTHLE=EA BEASA=THLAER
2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-N\f B+t ZB-N\f ZE-+%
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER) (RBER) (REFEZ)
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THT THET TET
Revenue E:
Sports content production and SENDEER
distribution income L ON 103,133 30,315 191,727 52,330
Sports talent management 2EANTEBBA
income 1,132 1,749 3,538 3,765
Sales of goods HEED 240,120 24512 419,352 76,438
Community development HEZEZARBEA
consultancy service income 24,439 - 24,461 -
Sports park facilties hiring, SRERECHE .
management and other %q@ RE A R A
service income 3,760 2,012 4,860 3,642
Gross rental income ‘EeWA 2,623 1,239 5,334 1,472
375,207 59,827 649,272 137,547
Other income He gt A
Government grants B 5,068 8,486 9,974 16,932
Interest income Fl2HA 1,282 1,547 2,595 3,028
6,350 10,033 12,569 19,960
Other gains - net Hitl R F8E
Net fair value gain on RANZ 2 A
investment properties WamFaE 166 = 166 =
Gein on remeasurement of pre-  BATE BN AEREZ
existing interest in a joint BHEERZKE
venture (note 21) (FFEE21) 1,764 - 1,764 &
Net gain on disposal of HENE BER
property, plant and RENEFE
equipment 181 29 181 443
Fair value gain on derivative PTEMBIAZRT
financial instruments Bz 115 = 115 b
2,226 29 2,226 443
Other income and Httl AR
other gains - net HEtt & FE 8,576 10,062 14,795 20,403

oiterin Roport ZO15 % 3484
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4.. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The management is the Group's chief operating decision-maker.
The management reviews the Group’s internal reports periodically
in order to assess performance and allocate resources.

The management considers the business from a product/service
perspective. The management separately considers the different
products and services offered and the Group is organised into
two reportable operating segments as follows:

(@) the sports-related business segment engages in the
production and distribution of sports content, management
and marketing of sport talents and provision of sports-related
marketing and consultancy service; and

(b) the community development segment engages in
property development for sales and investment, research and
development, manufacturing, marketing and sales of construction
materials, operation of sports parks, development of communities
and provision of consultancy and subcontracting services.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit
or loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit or loss before tax.
The adjusted profit or loss before tax is measured consistently
with the Group’s profit or loss before tax except that interest
income, finance costs, equity-settled share option expenses, fair
value changes on investment properties, share of profits less
losses of associates and joint ventures as well as head office
and corporate income and expenses are excluded from such
measurement.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
FNPBEERBERRLS
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4, OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. rReEFEHER (F)
(Continued)
For the six months ended 30 June 2018 HE-_ZT—- )\ A=+HIEAHEA
N ERETITENES Community development
EERBER HERE
2018 2017 2018 2017
ZE2-0\f ZB-tf ZB-\Ff ZB-if
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) ~ (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER) (REBR) (REBR) (REBR) (REEHR)
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TER FiEn TER FHL FEL FHT
Segment Revenue Ak
External i3 195,305 56,095 453,967 81,452 649,272 137,547
Segment Resulis PEEE 31,808 1,105 26,420 2,223 58,228 3,328
Reconciliation: AR
Interest income FIEMA 2,595 3,028
Fair value gain/(loss) on RENECATE
investment propertes W%/ (B8) 166 9,315)
Equity-settied share option expense INREEE 2
BERERS (5,892) (38,854)
Gain on remeasurement of pre-gxisting EFitENAELEY
interest in joint venture REEZZ NG 1,764 =
Comorate and other unallocated income. S ERE MR ABRA 296 443
Corporate and other unallocated PEREBRIERS
£Xpenses (31,742) (24,079
Share of profis less losses of associates D EBA AT RAL
and joint ventures rEZRFIREE 94,660 (17,454)
Finance costs BB (39,886) (45,866)
Profit/oss) before income tax bR FrE A0
B/ (B8) 80,189 (128,769)

Prterine Boport ZO16 + 48 %
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5..  FINANCE COSTS 5. BBEAE

For the three months ended For the six months ended
30 June 30 June

HEAA=tHLE=A EBEAA=TRLAMEA

2018 2017 2018 2017

“B-N\f ZB—+§ ZB-N\f ZB—+F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER) (REER) (REEZ)

Note HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
ik TET TR TET TR

Interest on bank and ROIREMER
other loans Fl& 2,317 5,302 3,179 10,195
Interest on convertible notes AHRBREEFNE 26,669 24,500 52,767 48,503
Less: interest expense BoBRELARE
capitalised into EEDZ
properties under FEMEZ
development for sale FIEHZ (7,666) (9,801) (16,060) (12,832)
21,380 20,001 39,886 45,866
Note: B 5
(@) The finance costs have been capitalised at a weighted average (@) BTSN B 1814.5% (ZE—+4F:
interest rate of 14.5% (2017:12.1%) per annum. 121%) 2 FHEFERE R

, "VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
0 FnoEERERRLS
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6. SHARE OF PROFITS LESS LOSSES OF
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

The unaudited condensed consolidated results for the period
ended 30 June 2018 include the Group’s share of the results
and reserves of Li Ning Co for the six months ended 31 March
2018 and adjusted for any significant events or transactions for
the period from 1 April 2018 to 30 June 2018. The unaudited
condensed consolidated results for the period ended 30 June
2017 included the Group’s share of the results and reserves

of Li Ning Co for the six months ended 31 March 2017 and
adjusted for any significant events or transactions for the period
from 1 April 2017 to 30 June 2017. The Group has adopted
the provision contained in HKAS 28 whereby it is permitted to
include the attributable share of associate's results based on
accounts drawn up to a non-coterminous period end where

the difference must be no greater than three months. There is
no non-coterminous period end for other associates and joint
ventures.

During the six months ended 30 June 2018, the Group
shared the profits less losses of associates and joint ventures
amounting to HK$94,660,000 (the corresponding period in
2017: HK$50,258,000). In February 2017, Li Ning Co issued
168,629,032 new ordinary shares upon the conversion of
convertible bonds in the principal amount of RMB561,000,000
issued by Li Ning Co. The Group's equity interests in Li

Ning Co have been diluted from approximately 24.3% to
approximately 22.6% and a loss on deemed partial disposal
of HK$67,712,000 has arisen. In this connection, for the

six months ended 30 June 2017, the Group shared the net
losses of the associates and a joint venture in the amount of
HK$17,454,000.

6. DIEBMERFARGEREZ
i R S 18
BHE_Z-N\FRA=+THIEHHEAZR
RECHRGEAREGERAEENGET
ERRABE-_T-N\F=ZA=+t—HL
NMEAZEBERFEE LHE TN
FHA—BRE-_ZE—N\FRA=T+H
ILHRZEREREH A ZELS
B-BE_ZT—tLFRA=TAHLYME
ZARECERGEREBRAREE
EEBENRBE_T—+tF=A=1—
RIERNEAz#ERFE LHE-F
—tEFHA-RARE-ZE-EFXA
=tHLEHRZENERENHHRHIE
HAZ AERECRABTEGTLERNE
2855 T 8L 2 163 R UL - HUEFFAR R B
ERRTRAGERY (BEEENSEB
=EA) ZRBFAREBERR ¥
BoHMBMERRRAEEERTEE
ISP

BE-_ZT-NFXA=+BINEAR
REBHHBHLERAFRALEENR
) SRE 5 18 3294,660,0008 T (ZE —+
F[RIH 50,258,000 L) MR -_T—+
FZR FTERAEBAHEBITASEA
R #561,000,0007T #) 7] 2 % {5 5 & &
a1 3% 17168,629,032A% ¥7 & 5@ A% - AN
ERNZFZEAA M RED B K24 3% F
EH206% WELBELH)HEZE
867,712,000 oIt ME  HE-ZF
—tENAZTARLENEA  KEEH
HEENR R —HAERENEIRFEE
3E17,454,0007 T °
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7. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 7. BRFABHANER (FE)
The Group's profit/(loss) before income tax is arrived at after REBZBRABHINEFR (EE) T
charging/(crediting): Kk, (5EA) THISEER:
For the three months ended For the six months ended
30 June 30 June
BZEAA=THLE=MA BEAA=THIEAEAR
2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-N\§ ZB-t+t§ ZB-N\f ZEB-+%
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEER) (REER) (REER) (REERZ)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TERT TR
Cost of inventories sold BEFERA 233,248 23,933 403,875 75,191
Cost of services provided iR ft PR Bk A 79,891 28,439 150,531 46,349
Depreciation nE 899 796 1,681 1,638
Amortisation of intangible assets 4 ¥/ & B # 84 56 - 56 -
Foreign exchange loss, net EHERTE 1,095 1,922 1,880 2,174
Nt fair value (gain)/loss on RENEZATE
investment properties (W) / EBRER (166) 9,315 (166) 9,315
Net gain on disposal of HENE -BEK
property, plant and W ETFE
equipment (181) (29) (181) (443)
Fair value (gain)/loss on TAEMBIAZATE
derivative financial (W) /BB
instruments (115) 59 (115) 59
Gain on remeasurement of pre-  EFEERNAEDEY
existing interest in  joint BE#ER MR
venture (note 21) (KiE21) (1,764) = (1,764) =
Minimum lease payments under T3t RIEFEERL 2
operating leases of land RERERRK
and buildings 2,490 2,129 5,239 4,228
Employee benefits expense EERMAX
(inclucing directors’ (BEESEHS):
remuneration):
— Wages and salaries -IERkEe 14,976 11,257 28,273 22,898
— Equity-setiled share option ~ — WABR B4 & 7 B AR 1B
expenses X 1,595 4,554 3,739 25,110
— Contributions to - ERHFEKREE
defined contribution paT
retirement plan 1,880 860 2,903 1,736
Total employee benefits EERTIAYEE
expense 18,451 16,671 34,915 49,744

"VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
FNPBEERBERRLS
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8.  INCOME TAX 8. FBH
For the three months ended For the six months ended
30 June 30 June
BEXA=THL=M@A BERA=THLAEA
2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-\§ ZB-tFf ZEB-N\f ZB-LF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER) (REBR) (REFER)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FHET TERT FET
Current - the PRC AEE - 6,827 2,142 12,065 5417
Deferred Bt (27) (2,328) (27) (2,328)
6,556 (186) 11,794 3,089

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for
the six months ended 30 June 2018 as the Group did not
generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the period (the corresponding period in 2017: Nil). The PRC
corporate income tax provision in respect of operations in the
PRC is calculated based on the statutory tax rate of 25% on
the estimated assessable profits for the periods ended 30
June 2018 and 30 June 2017 based on existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

The share of income tax expense attributable to associates and
joint ventures for the period amounting to HK$10,543,000 (the
corresponding period in 2017: HK$11,400,000) is included in
“Share of profits less losses of associates and joint ventures” in
the unaudited consolidated results.

AEERBE_T-N\FRA=ZTAHLRX
BRI ENEBEEEMERTOEF
WA BB AR BB RIS HEE (=
Tt FRAY:E)  HPREEBELZ
RS EASHEEDRBEBRTE
HoOREBENEMNRBE_ZT-N\FXA
=tARZZE—tFRNA=+RHIHME
A {5 FE RR T M LA 25% 2 0% E B SR &t
o

HADHBERNRREEDERIGME
TR BT X #10,543,0008 L (Z T —+ 5
R HA 11,400,000/ 7T ) Jhat A R AL T %
BERBEZ [DEHERRTREELE

2N ER] -
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9..  PROFIT/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share amounts for
the six months ended 30 June 2018 and 2017 is based on the
profit/(loss) for the period attributable to equity holders of the
Company, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue and participating equity instruments during the periods.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount for the
periods ended 30 June 2018 and 30 June 2017 was based
on the profit for the period attributable to equity holders of the
Company and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
after adjustment for the effect of deemed exercise of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares at no consideration at the beginning of
the period.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share
amount presented for the periods ended 30 June 2018 and 30
June 2017 in respect of a dilution as the impact of the potential
dilution effect of the associate’s dilutive potential ordinary shares
and the Company’s potential ordinary shares for the periods
ended 30 June 2018 and 30 June 2017, either had anti-
dilutive or no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share
amount presented.

"VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
FNPBEERBERRLS

9. AXPEERBEEAEMLMER
= (EE)
BHE-_Z—)\FR-_ZT—tF~A=+
AIEANEAZEREREN,(FE)
SEDNIBREARREREEABGHA
wmA (R RPABEEITEER KL
SEBRATANEFHOHTE-

HE_Z-/\FXA=Z+ARZZE—t
FRAAZTHLEHEZEREERN S
BIORBARRERSA ARG
AR EBACINEFHE (2R ERE
VREREBTEEHECHTLERZ
FEEHRAE)GFE-

HREBEE-Z-\FRA=TER-F
—tERA=THILHM tEEES
MEMS BEARABBREZER
TRBREARRNEEEBREMET
ZERERBNERARBEERELL
BESEME S EEYEMmMS LE
HREE_T-NFRA=ZTHE=-ZE
—tFRNA=T R LSRRI 2K
AEXBNSHEELFR-



Dbt 1 o aatd e (omsoldited Grdirin Financiel Setonenit
A2 ENRNGAF WM % B AW

RRREEFEARGER
wBR(BR) (&)

9.  PROFIT/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 9.
TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)
For the three months ended For the six months ended
30 June 30 June
BZ~AA=THLE=HEA BEAA=THLAEA
2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-N\§ =B+t ZB-N\f ZEBE—LF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER) (REEK) (REER)
Profit/(loss) attributable to BRI ESRERR
equity holders of the BERN/ (FR)
Company, used in the ZADEEEEEA
basic and diluted earnings/ FEMEEF, (58)
(loss) per share calculation (F%1)
(HK$000) 31,519 (30,603) 68,580 (134,510)
Number of ordinary shares ~ ZEREH
Weighted average number of BRI EFRER
ordinary shares in issue BR/ (BE)Z
and participating equity ERTEARR
instruments, used in the 2ERATAY
basic earings/(loss) per MEEHE (FR)
share calculation ('000) 11,217,767 11,172,697 11,214,497 11,168,579
Dilutive equivalent shares BELBRFAEEZ
arising from potential BEZRARH
ordinary shares (1000) (Fi) 128,646 - 114,320 =
Weighted average number of AR ESREETRH
ordinary shares and potential ZEBRREE
ordinary shares, used in the LERMETHE
diluted earnings per share (FH)
calculation ('000) 11,346,413 11,172,697 11,328,817 11,168,579
Basic eamnings/(oss) per shae  FFIREARRF/ (FE)
(HK cents) (340) 0.28 027) 061 (1.20
Diluted earnings/(loss) per SRESRH/ (BE)
share (HK cents) (L) 0.28 (0.27) 0.61 (1.20)

Prterine Boport ZO16 + 48 %
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10. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

As at 30 June 2018, the fair values of the Group’s investment
properties were HK$146,466,000 (31 December 2017:
HK$137,274,000). The fair values of the Group’s investment
properties are assessed by management based on the property
valuation, adopting the income capitalisation approach and
made reference to available comparable market transactions,
performed by Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited,
independent professionally qualified valuers. The investment
properties are measured using significant unobservable inputs
(level 3 of fair value hierarchy). During the period, there were no
transfers among the levels.

11. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT

VENTURES

10. BEYHE
RZE-NEXA=+H KAEEKRE
Y% 7 N F{E 5146,466,0008 T (==
—tF+=A=+—H:137,274,000%
L) BEEBEDNREBYEESERG
EME - A FHENEEREEBN
ERABFEBRMNBAB RN AT 2%
BEAELBMEBRHETZWER
EFEAEEREMEZATFE-RE
METERBEART I BIRE ARG (5
SN FE)FE-HR - BRZEL &
g

. RBEQXARGELEE

al

30 June 31 December
2018 2017
—E-N\F
AA=tH
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (B&R)
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET
Interests in associates REEATzER
Amount due from an associate JE B & A R IR 5,522 5,522
Share of net assets of associates AEBERAIEEFE 2,218,472 2,146,062
Goodwill S 1,404,735 1,423,657
3,628,729 3,575,241
Interest in joint ventures REELEZER
Share of net assets of joint ventures AERECEEEFE 17,863 42,520
Goodwil [EES - 11,748
17,863 54,268
3,646,592 3,629,509

"VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
FNPBEERBERRLS




D 15 e Yl ( mdnsed (oot Grdrin Finacial Stienentt

RIEFHAWG A M B U A W2

11. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES (Continued)

Note:

As at 30 June 2018, the market value of Li Ning Co’s listed shares
was HK$8.65 per share (31 December 2017: HK$6.33 per share).
The number of Li Ning Co ordinary shares held by the Group was
approximately 299,374,000 as at 30 June 2018 and 31 December
2017 and number of convertible securities held was approximately
249,827,000 as at 30 June 2018 and 31 December 2017.

As at 30 June 2018 and 31 December 2017, the Group has
interests in the following principal associates:

Li Ning Co* FENA
CITIC Land REEXE
Double Happiness qEE

1. RBEAARAECEIR
= (&)

m?

RZE—NFAAZ=Z+H FTERQFTLEM
BHzHERBERSOSBT(ZT—+F
+ZA=1+—HB:5R63IBHET) - AEER
—E-NFANAZHHAEZZE—tF+=
A=+ BFBEZTEQRLBEAREENA
299,374,0000 MR —_ZT—NFEXNA=1+8
E—Z—tF+-_A=Z+—HBABBKE
%8B #9/5249,827,00015 ©

RIBE—-NFEANA=Z+BER-_T—+F
+ZA=+—8 AEERUTEEH
BNRIEARER:

Percentage of
equity interests
directly attributable

to the Group
AEBEEE
EBEREED K
22.5%

29%

10%

Li Ning Co holds 47.5% of the equity interests in Double
Happiness.

In June 2018, the Group completed the step acquisition of 20%
equity interest in FESLIBRE (G BEREEEERA
7] ("JEALEERBE) and its 50% equity interest was accounted for
as remeasurement of pre-existing interest in a joint venture.

FERAFEAEEA 5% R

RZZE—N\FAA AEETHOREE
M&E%;EFH%H% (KE)BEREBRESR

NaE] ([FEFLIEBE]) Z20%0% # & H
50%1&%5)\EEEIH’EE%EJEEAAMA
EPAnE-F: 20

Prterine Boport ZO16 + 48 %
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12. STOCK OF PROPERTIES 12. MEFE

30 June 31 December

2018 2017

—B-N\f¥ “E-tE§

AA=tH F=E=AF=F

(Unaudited) (Rudted)

(REER) (B8%)

HK$’000 HK$'000

THT FHL

Properties Under development for sale BRACEENE 287,995 273,048
The properties under development for sale are held outside BRERPZAEMETIREBBINAP R

Hong Kong with medium to long-term lease. The developmentis ~ HAFRE#HH - A EFEHEN B HRE
expected to be completed more than one year from the reporting ~ F HA#E B 3@ — F B T °

date.
13. INVENTORIES 13. ®E
30 June 31 December
2018 2017
—E-\E —E-—tE
~A=1H +=A=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%)
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAEL
Raw materials R 8 194 196
Finished goods 2k m 180 140
374 336

; "VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
S FNPBEERBERRLS
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14. TRADE DEBTORS AND BILLS RECEIVABLE

14, BUERRREKREE

30 June 31 December

2018 2017

—B-N\F ZB—tF

~A=tH +=A=+-H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REBERZ) (&%)

HK$’000 HK$'000

THT TEL

Trade debtors and bills receivable YR R ek R & 345,221 303577
Less: allowance for doubtful debts W REEE (4,038) (4,038)
341,183 299,539

An aging analysis of the trade debtors and bills receivable (net
of allowance for doubtful debts) that are not considered to be
impaired as at the end of the reporting period, based on the

payment due date, is as follows:

R ERRBRBR/RREZ EURERT R
U RE (R REREE) RN R
BHEIZ BRI DA T -

30 June 31 December

2018 2017

—E-N\E “E-tF

~AA=t+H +=B=+—"H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REER) (BE%)

HK$’000 HK$'000

TER THT

Neither past due nor impaired KRB B E 323,515 235,152

Less than 3 months past dug BEIR=@EA - 44,623

3 to 6 months past due BE=ZXEA N 18,083
More than 6 months and less than BEEBRNEA

a year past due BIR—% 17,207 792

Over 1 year past due BME—FHE - 989

341,183 299,539

riterin Roport 2018 #9885 59
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14. TRADE DEBTORS AND BILLS RECEIVABLE
(Continued)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate

to diversified customers with no recent history of default.
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that no provision for impairment is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.

15. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

14, EWEZRERERE
(#®)

R 480 EA TSR R (A FE M 3R 0B B 8 R R Y
BE REHEREHEYES - DB
B RE 2 FEU R IR T B % 47 B Ak £2 )
RERFEELBYBEYRSEH R
BRERR ARTEERAZLSEP
TREBEEIEEANRE TABES
TR AT 2ERE - HBARZESE
BAVE R B B o

15. ANKE RERAEMER

IR

30 June 31 December
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tfE
AR=TH r=E=r=F
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (B&R)
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FAT
Prepayments BRRE 58,676 98,883
Deposits and other receivables BeRE R E 93,975 159,143
152,651 258,026
Non-current deposits and other recelvables ERBERER
Hit B 1,760 1,760

40 '\éllEVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

NPBEZERBERLRZS
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16. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 16. ENERREMENKE
The trade payables of the Group as at 30 June 2018 and BRBZZAHFE AEER=_ZT—N
31 December 2017 were all aged within three months, as FRNAZFTHRERZ-Z—+F+_-A
determined based on the invoice date. = t+—HZEMNERZEREDR=E

Ao

30 June 31 December

2018 2017

—E-N\E “E-tF

~A=tH +=-B=+—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REER) (EE%)

HK$'000 HK$'000

TER AT

Trade payables e BR 3K 97,842 105,252

Other payables Hib e 3E 57,164 61,532

155,006 166,784

17. ACCRUALS AND RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE 17. B ERARAWNRE

30 June 31 December

2018 2017

—E-N\E “E-tF

~A=1H +=B=+—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REER) (&%)

HK$'000 HK$'000

TER AT

Accruals [T ER 20,907 22,613

Receipts in advance BB 87,544 48,808

108,451 71,421

Drterin Roport 2015 ¥ 5485 A
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18. BANK LOANS

18. |ITEX

30 June 31 December

2018 2017

—2-)0\% —E-tF

~A=1H +=ZA=1+—-H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REER) (&%)

HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT FAEL

Bank loans, secured ROTER HEA 40,050 37,535
Less: Current portion W B E o (40,050) -
- 37,535

Bank loan as at 30 June 2018 is a revolving loan while bank
loan as at 31 December 2017 was fully repaid in May 2018.
Both of the bank loans bear floating rate of HIBOR plus basis.

Loan included collateralised bank loan which is secured by
interest in an associate with an estimated carrying amount
of approximately HK$78,153,000 (31 December 2017:
approximately HK$111,612,000).

The Group has obtained bank facilities of HK$460,000,000
during the period, of which HK$420,000,000 remained
unutilised at 30 June 2018.

"VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
FNPBEERBERRLS

RZZB-NFRA=THZRITER
RBEREF MR_T—tF+-A
=t+—RZBRITERER=_T-N\FH
ABEEER -ZSROTERIREER
TREFRBMETER R ZFEHHN KL

B o
/T

BEReEaR—MBeans @S (E
T BR M 4978,153,0008 L (—ZE—+
F+-A=+—H8:4111,612,0005
To) EER R BEBRITER

HA - RN BEER R 178 & 460,000,000
77T H R 420,000,000 TR =2 — N
FEXNA=ZtTHBHABAR-
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19. CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 13 December 2016, the Group completed the issuance of
redeemable convertible notes (the “Notes”) in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$778,000,000 with an initial conversion
price of HK$0.840 per ordinary share of the Company (subject
to adjustments). The Notes were issued on 16 December 2016
(the “Issue Date”) which will be due on the fifth anniversary of the
Issue Date, i.e. 16 December 2021 (the “Maturity Date”). The
Notes bore an initial interest of 5% per annum payable quarterly
in arrears after the Issue Date. Unless previously converted,
redeemed or cancelled, the Note will be redeemed on the
Maturity Date, at a redemption price equal to the aggregate of:

i) the outstanding principal amount of the Notes;
(i) the outstanding interest up to the date of redemption;
(i) the outstanding default interest (if any); and

(iv) any additional amount that would make up an internal
rate of return on the amount of the Notes in (i) above at 10.5%
per annum (having included all interests paid together with that
payable in (i) and (i) above), calculated during the period from
the Issue Date up to (and including) the Maturity Date.

The Notes are secured by interest in an associate with an
estimated carrying amount of approximately HK$769,231,000
as at 30 June 2018 (31 December 2017: approximately
HK$$755,901,000).

19. ITRREE
RIE—XEFE+-_A+=H K£E%
KB 1T AN & 48 % 5778,000,0008 7T 2 A
BRI BRER ([ZE&]) V28K
BAEBRAR R E®AR0.8405 L (7] F
FAE) ZEER-_ZT—RE+ZA+X
B (&7 ETTBRETAZE
hBAFEER (-2 -—F+ A+~
B (TEHA]) )R- ZEPRER
K%t B HARBETHRIBS=M@AN
B—koBRIEIRATEL  EO kT
GHZEENISBEERD  BRESER
AT 48 F0

0 BEZEXRES:
iy HBEBEBHZEHKFE:
iy HWRES(WME) R

vy HHERLEX)MEEREITH
BEZIHA (BEZA)HERESSF
105%TEHMSE(REE2HEAFE
R i) R (iR &) AE i aE XK
AR E SR

R-ZZE—N\EXA=+H EEmHs
BEE{E#)769,231,0008 7T (ZE—+ 4
+ =B =+—8:#755901,000% 7T )
ZHERE R 2SR

Dterin Boport 2018 $348
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19. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

An aggregated net proceeds of approximately HK$777,013,000
was raised by the convertible notes during the year ended 31
December 2016.

The fair values of the liability component and the equity
conversion component were determined upon the issuance of
the Notes. The fair value of the liability component as at the
Issue Date was determined by using cash flows discounted at
an effective market yield of 14.64% for a similar liability that
does not have an equity conversion option. The residual amount,
representing the value of equity conversion component, is
included in shareholders’ equity.

During the six months ended 30 June 2018, no noteholders
have converted any portion of the Notes into ordinary shares of
the Company.

The Notes are presented in the statement of financial position as
follows:

19. ARKREE (&)

RBE-_T—RF+= ﬂ +T—HIF
B MR RES HEESAERIEF
gﬁi%’ﬂ777,013,000/§7t°

gl &ﬁéﬁnﬁﬁ;@ RFERE
%F?"TTH%J%E BES B’é?éﬁElZ’/}

?{Eﬁﬁﬁﬁjfﬁ%fﬁﬁ?ﬁ%ﬂ’]*ﬁwﬁﬁ
ERAER TSRS R1464%TRNES
MEBETE %TTAIE(ED$EE$1}‘%4B
ZEBE)FARREZ -

RBE-_T-NFAA=TRHLAEA
N BEZRESEARERRERSE
BRAREZ EBK-

ERRMBHRARAN2IT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Liability component at 1 January ®R—A—BZ

BEBS 750,605 690,440
Interest expense A BHX 52,767 48,503
Interest paid [=ENFUESS (19,450) (19,450)

Liability component at 30 June RANA=+RBRZ
BEHS 783,922 719,493

"VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
FNPBEERBERRLS
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19. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities
at the end of the period, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed
using contractual rate) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay:

19. TREREE (8%)
TRFIIARERENRBERRESRE
(BRERAGHFMERFHEZ BN
ZHRBENINHBRAERATER L
REAH:

More than More than
1 year 2 years
but less but less

than than Carrying

2 years 5 years amount
BA-F RAMEF

BORWE BOIREEF BEE

HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000

TER TER TER TER

38,900 1145132 1,222,932 783,922

Within

1 year

—£R

HKS'000

FEn

At 30 June 2018 (Unaudited) RZE-NERA

=1R (REEK)

Convertble notes (labilty component) ~ ATARZHE (BEHH) 38900
At 31 December 2017 (Audted) RZE-t%+=A
“t+-R(E&R)

Convertible nofes (fzbilty component) ~—~ ATEREH (BEHS) 38,900

38,900 1,164,582 1,242,382 750,606

Prterine Boport ZO16 + 48 %
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20. SHARE CAPITAL 20. B
30 June 2018 31 December 2017
(Unaudited) (Audited)
“E-\EXAZ1H “E-tE+ZA=1-H
(REBER) (82kK)
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
shares amount shares amount
RH#EE ] BOEE AfE
HK$'000 HKS 000
Tén FhL
Authorised EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each BHRAEET EER
(‘Ordinary Shares’) (rgakl) 20,000,000,000 1,000,000 20,000,000,000 1,000,000
Redeemable comvertile prefered shaes  BREE001E Lz TERE
of HKS0.01 each (‘Preferred Shares') nEBELR ((BER]) 6,000,000,000 60,000 6,000,000,000 60,000
Total b 26,000,000,000 1,060,000 26,000,000,000 1,060,000
Issued and fully paid: BEIRAR:
Ordinary Shares TRk
At 31 December 2017 and WZE—tE+-A=+-Bk
1 January 2018 “Z-\5-f-H 8,808,732,726 440,437
Issue of ordinary shares BIILERk 38,168,000 1908
At30 June 2018 RZE-NERA=1H 8,846,900,726 442 345

45 "VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
FNPBEERBERRLS
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21. BUSINESS COMBINATION

In June 2018, the Group completed the step acquisition of
20% equity interest in 3E L12 B for a consideration of
approximately HK$14,575,200. The Group's interest in £ FL1&
5 increased from 50% to 70% and JE ML B changed from
a joint venture to a subsidiary of the Company. The results of 3E
JLE B and its subsidiaries are consolidated into the Group’s
financial statements commencing from the acquisition date. The
acquisition was made as part of the Group’s strategy to expand
the physical rehabilitation business.

The Group accordingly remeasured the fair value of its previously
held equity interest in 3F .42 % at the acquisition date and
recognised the resulting gain of approximately HK$1,764,000
on remeasurement of the Group’s pre-existing interest in

JE N, B to acquisition date fair value and included such

gain in “Other income and other gains — net” in the condensed
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

21, ¥Ba6t

REZZB—N\FERA RNEETKARE
#914,575,20078 7T 7 P B U B 3 AL 12 B
Z20%PHE c AEERIENLEH 2 S
F50%IE E70%  RIENEBHADRE
BOEETAWBAR FENEBRE
MERRZ¥E8WEBHEHARSE
EFEHRE - ZRBEEALNEEER
BREREXBHREBN—ID -

AEFMARBNEERRASMFEEE
AR A FE NS A F(E - 5t
ENFEARBEREAFL BB ERE
YiE AR P ERBEIEENRED
1,764,000 7T - I 18 5% W am 5t A B B 47
GRS HEMEEERZ [RUA
N EmMg R HA -

Dterin Boport 2018 $348
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21. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued) 21, ¥EXE6t(EF)
The aggregate fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities ENEBEREE A AHRAINEERS
of 3E A1 5 as at the acquisition date are as follows: BzAFEBENT :

Fair values
recognised on
acquisition date

RUEE B 4

BRZATE
HK$°000
TET

Intangible assets mEE 13,538
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TN FRIE e &H K EIE 25,713
Cash and bank balances Re RIRTTHER 11,168
Other assets HEmEE 3,933
Liabilities assumed FrEiEaE (7,809)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BRATEINEZAZNFEE
FE 46,543
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR A 25 (13,963)
32,580
Goodwill [EES 18,433
Consideration RE 51,013
Satisfied by: IR
Cash payable ENRE 14,575
Fair value of pre-existing interest in REBIENEBERERAUEB S
JE N1 B at the date of acquisition /NS 36,438
51,013

4'6} '\éllEVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

NPBEZERBERLRZS
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21. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)
The fair value of the identifiable net assets is based on the
valuation performed by Savills Valuation and Professional
Services Limited, independent professionally qualified valuers.

22. COMMITMENTS FOR PROPERTY

DEVELOPMENT/CAPITAL EXPENDITURE
As at 30 June 2018, the Group had the follow commitments for
property development and capital expenditure:

21, ¥BE6t (E)

SRS SEATENBRESE —AT
g EEREEERARAR (B
HEAGRGERM) BT EEEE -

22. EHEMR EXHEIKE

RZZE-N\FRA=1+H XEEHE
AT B EE R 3 B AN SR

30 June 31 December
2018 2017
—E-N\E “E-tF
~AHA=t+H +=B=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REERK) (BE%)
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER THT
Contracted, but not provided for: EHEMER S T-H
Leasehold improvements HEMEEE 612 =
Property development/ RERE/

construction work BETR 29,332 29,800

Capital contribution of joint ventures/ TERERE/
associates NG 607,928 616,137
637,872 645,937

Goiterin: Roport 2018 #9482 4G
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23. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 23. EXBEALRS
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these MREZEREEZT T BREE M
unaudited interim financial statements, the Group had the iz XS0 REBRBERNRE T

following material transactions with related parties in the ordinary ~ EBEF AU TEABEA LTS :
course of business during the period:

For the six months ended

BZT3HHIEAEA
30 June 30 June
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E2—+tF
AA=1H ANHA=+H
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEZ)
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FHEx FHET
Marketing service income EH&&FELBZ i
received and receivable from NA TG HERE
associates BR7E U A () 174,086 40,508
Cost of purchases paid and BT R ES—
payable to an associable RN E’J% B
EA (i) 1,374 -
Expenses paid and payable to Bt RES—MFE
an associate iR/ =] F;ﬂ 52 (i) 25 =
Office and car-park rental B AT R e
expense paid and DRIZMAER
payable to associates FESHEHSMAX (iv) 909 714
(i Marketing service income in relation to some sports i) MiGHEERBWAEHRBAREE

event and competition and the endorsement of brand products of EERZATHEEBALRBERREEE
Li Ning Co and its subsidiaries (‘Li Ning Group”) managed by the A FIREMBAR (ZEZ&L£E]) 2
Group received and receivable from Li Ning Group* and Double BERMREEZBREMIRNEZTEEE K

Happiness*, which was charged in accordance with the terms HEE IR ER EHERBER %
negotiated between the related parties. EBRIREEBATRE Z HRRUKER -

3 "VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
D0 ¥nomERERRS
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23. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(i) Cost of purchases in relation to brand products of Li Ning
Group™ paid and payable to Li Ning Group*, which was charged
in accordance with the terms negotiated between the Group and
Li Ning Group*.

(iii) Expenses in relation to certain consumables paid and
payable to Li Ning Group*, which was charged in accordance
with the terms negotiated between the Group and Li Ning
Group™.

(iv) During the six months ended 30 June 2018, the Group
leased offices and certain car-parking spaces from Li Ning
Group* and Double Happiness®. The lease rates were determined
after arm’s length negotiations between the related parties with
reference to current prevailing market rate.

Mr. Li Ning and Mr. Li Qilin, the nephew of Mr. Li Ning, are
common directors of the Company and Li Ning Group while Mr. Li Ning
and Mr. Chan Ling are common directors of the Company and Double
Happiness.

24. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

As at 30 June 2018, the fair values of the derivative financial
instruments were HK$2,340,000 (31 December 2017:
HK$2,255,000). The fair values of the derivative financial
instruments were assessed by management based on the
valuation, using a binomial model, performed by Savills Valuation
and Professional Services Limited, independent professionally
qualified valuers. The fair values of the put option and the call
option were measured using significant unobservable inputs
(level 3 of fair value hierarchy). During the period, there were no
transfers among the levels.

23. EXBEALXS (H)

iy ENERENZEFEHEE0FE
SE-REERERRBER  ZPRR
7R S 8] B 2 5 62 (B 1A T A AR SRR ©

iy BNRENEZEEENETHEE
mABAY  ZRBERASEERTEE
B "1 & &Y 1§ FR U ER

REBEE-Z-N\FRA=TAL
NEA AEEERAFTELEERAE
B ZMAERETEEM - WARET)
HIERI M T2 ERITHHKERRF
EREREE -

=

FEELRFEBAL (FELALEN
EF)RARARFERBZARES MF
EEERRELEERARTARLLEE ZHF
Ex-

24, BB IEZAFENE

R-ZE—N\EXA=+8 TEFKEL
B2 NF{EA2340,0008 7T (—E—+
FE+-HA=+—H:225500087T) ° &
BENREBYE£AERMEEMSE —
KEBHIEERBEBRB AR A FE
BoEABRETZHEFHEITEY
BTAZAFE REERREEZR
FEDEBEATASREGASE (5
SBAFE)FTE-HAN A FEEBHRMH
WEETER -
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24. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities
approximated their fair value. They were trade debtors and bills
receivable, prepayments, deposits and other receivables, cash
and bank balances, trade and other payables, accruals and
receipts in advance and deferred income.

25. INTERIM DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any interim
dividend in respect of the six months ended 30 June 2018
(2017: Nil).

"VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
FNPBEERBERRLS

24, BIBIEREZAFEE
(#®)
BIEEREE Y EEEEE A TEM
EoREMBEAERABEOERKER
REWEE EARE e REME
WEE R RBTES ERERR
Hoqth A< 2R0E - PEEHE PR R TE KGR IE LA
RAEFE A o

25. FHEHIRE
BEETRERNBE-_ZT—N\EXA
ZSTBRIEAEAZEAPSERE (=T
—tF E) o



PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
six months ended 30 June 2018.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
DIRECTORS AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN

THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 30 June 2018, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ")) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which the Directors and chief
executive of the Company were deemed or taken to have under
such provisions of the SFQ), or which were required to be and
are recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the required standard of dealings by Directors as referred to in
Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules were as follows:

BE - HEIWMEARAT LT
& 3
REBE-Z-NFXAZTHLAE
AR ARR REEANE A RS EE
B HEKBEEAREZERLETE
o

EERITHRABRADAREE
BrE RO RAERDRERE
HEBERAR

R-ZE—N\EXA=1+H KRazE
ERITRAZN AR REABE®
(EEABEHFLBERN ([FHEHE
M) ) BEXVER) 2 B - FERERR 1D R f&
HEP HEAREEFRBEEASE
XVEBEE7 R B8 Ep A S AN A) K B X B
ZRESRKE (BIERAAREERITHR
REBIBEES R BAEEOE B KR
BAENEERBZEZRKE) M
BARORENALTIRERESERNE
&) B350 FTiF B B o i 2 2k ok
2 AR R GEM T 48 BI 585,46 =5.67 1%
FrilEAESEE VAT IZEBENE R
NEI MR SRR WT
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Interests in the ordinary shares (the “Shares”), REQATREBR ([RHB]) - HEARSG

underlying Shares and debenture of the Company REEEZER
Number of Shares/
underlying Shares held
FiERSG,/ AERA%A
Approximate
Nature of Interest percentage of
BRME Number of shareholding
Personal Corporate share asat
Name of Directors Capacity interests interests  options held® Total interests 30 June 2018
RZB-N%F
AB=1H
i FERE
ESfs 2t BAESR ARER BREHEC EEEH BHEA
M. LI Ning Bengficial owner 21,508,000 = 9,000,000
FEEE EafEBA i g
Interest of controlled - 8,212,443,1511 - BazLIST e
B corporation
REHEEER
Interest of controlled - 544,241,573 - 544,241,573 (§) 6.15%
B corporation
REHEEER
Mr. CHAN Ling Beneficial ouner 63,267,669 - 72,000,000 135,287,669 (L) 1.53%
RELE EafEBA
Mr. LI Chunyang Beneficial ouner 13,067,669 - 48,000,000 61,067,669 (L) 0.69%
FEGEYE EafEBA
Mr. LI Qilin Beneficiary of trusls 6,080,022,769 - -
THBEYE FHREEA
Beneficial awner - - 91,000,000 6,171,022,769 (1) 69.75%
EnBEAA
Mr. CHAN James Beneficial awner 5,000,000 - 11,000,000 16,000,000 (L) 0.18%
BB xE EnBEAA
Mr. MA Wing Man Beneficial awner 864,000 - 7,833,334 8,697,334 (1) 0.10%
B EnBEAA
Mr. CHEN Johnny Beneficial awner 600,000 - 7,833,334 8,433,334 (1) 0.10%
BREZESE EnfEAA
Mr. LIEN Jown Jing, Vincent Beneficial owner - - 6,000,000 6,000,000 (1) 0.07%
BRERE EnfEAA
(L) and (S) represent long position and short position respectively ) (S) P BIIELT B KB

"VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
FNPBEERBERRLS



Notes:

Mr. Li Ning is deemed to be interested in the long positions of 1.
8,212,443,151 Shares in aggregate through his interests in

Lead Ahead Limited (“Lead Ahead"), Victory Mind Assets Limited
("Victory Mind Assets”) and Dragon City Management (PTC)

Limited ("Dragon City"), respectively and the short position of
544,241,573 Shares through his interests in Lead Ahead, as

follows:

(a) the long position of 2,132,420,382 Shares and the
short position of 544,241,573 Shares are held by Lead
Ahead, which is owned as to 60% by Mr. Li Ning and
40% by Mr. Li Chun. Mr. Li Ning is also a director of
Lead Anhead;

(b) the long position of 2,728,582,769 Shares in which
Victory Mind Assets is interested in comprises (i)
1,680,022,769 Shares held by Victory Mind Assets
and (i) 1,048,560,000 Shares which may be issued
on the basis of a full exercise of conversion rights at a
conversion price of HK$0.325 per Share attaching to
the convertible bonds issued to Victory Mind Assets by
the Company in November 2013. Victory Mind Assets
is owned as to 57% by Ace Leader Holdings Limited
("Ace Leader”) and 38% by Jumbo Top Group Limited
("Jumbo Top”). All shares of Ace Leader are held by
TMF (Cayman) Ltd. (“TMF") in its capacity as trustee
of a discretionary trust. Mr. Li Ning is the settlor of the
trust and is therefore deemed to be interested in such
2,728,582,769 Shares. Mr. Li Ning is a director of
each of Victory Mind Assets and Ace Leader; and

B S A FE B LA T H Lead Ahead Limited
(TLead Ahead |) -~ Victory Mind Assets
Limited ( ['Victory Mind Assets ] ) 5 Dragon
City Management (PTC) Limited ( [ Dragon
Cty VDRI ERRMERAEES
#8,212,443 15115 17 B 2 = &
i B Lead Ahead ¥ /5 #E 23 T #1485 HE
B544,241 573D KB 2 %

@) 2,132,420,382/% & 15 17 B &
544,241,5730% f% 17 /4% & FA Lead
Ahead% 7 1l Lead Aheadfl 2= 38
o R A St A B HEH60%
Je40% %4 o 2228 55 4 IR R Lead
AheadZ EE :

) Victory Mind AssetsHE 5 2,728,582,769
BRERHDIFEER 48
5 (i)Victory Mind AssetsFri%H 2
1,680,022,7698% AR 17 K (i) &l 7
ARAR-ZZE—ZF+—AnR
Victory Mind Assets® 77 2 7] #2 i%
EHFMEzBBERER
B &A% 190.3257 TTER KT
fi# i B] T ¥ 17 21,048,560,000
F% B 19 © Victory Mind Assets? B
i Ace Leader Holdings Limited ( [Ace
Leader ] ) KzJumbo Top Group Limited
(TJumbo Top ] ) #E B57% 5% 38% °
Ace LeaderZ & A% 7 B3 TMF (Cayman)
Ltd. ([TMF 1) A BB (S 7T 2 X7
ABOEB - TEREARZE
FRZAIZA FARERAR £
42,728,562, 7600 A% 7 1 A &
25 o FE A AVictory Mind Assets
FAce leader R B ZEE &
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() the'long position of 3,351,440,000 Shares in
which Dragon City is interested in comprises (i)
2,000,000,000 Shares held by Dragon City and (ii)
1,351,440,000 Shares which may be issued on
the basis of a full exercise of conversion rights at a
conversion price of HK$0.325 per Share attaching
to the convertible bonds issued to Dragon City by the
Company in November 2013. Dragon City is interested
in such 3,351,440,000 Shares in its capacity as
trustee of a unit trust, the units of which are owned as to
60% by Cititrust (Cayman) Limited (“Cititrust”) and as to
40% by Cititrust, each as the trustee of separate trust.
Mr. Li Ning is the 60% shareholder of Dragon City and a
founder of the unit trust and is therefore deemed to be
interested in such 3,351,440,000 Shares. Mr. Li Ning
is a director of Dragon City.

2. See note 1(b) and note 1(c) under “Interests and short positions
of substantial shareholders and other persons in the share capital
of the Company” below.

38 These represented the share options granted by the Company to
the respective Directors, the details of which are provided in the
section headed “Share Option Scheme” in this report.

Save as disclosed abave, none of the Directors nor the chief
executive of the Company had, as at 30 June 2018, any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they were deemed or taken to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be and
are recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
required standard of dealings by Directors as referred to in Rules
5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
FNPBEERBERRLS

(© Dragon City# &3,351,440,000
MR 07 A #E % & R B E ()
Dragon City$¥ A 2.2,000,000,000
RO ERINERXRBRZFT
— =%+ — A mDragon CityZ
TRZABRBRERATH 2 &R
RSB E TR %0.325%
TEZBTEMN TEITZ
1,351,440,000% % 15 ° Dragon
Cty ABRI{EFEZ ZEAT D
A % 553,351,440,000% A% 19 1
% M _E S 552 B AL [ Cititrust
(Cayman) Limited ([ Cititrust ] )
CititrustfE B E B L TEA
5 B H60%K%40% ° =k
A A% A Dragon City 60%1E 25 2
RRREBEMEFTZAIZA
Lt B 4R B 7 3% 3,351,440,000
D RS - TEEAE
/5 Dragon City 2 8 = »

2. BTIX[FERFEREMATRAR
RIS ROAR ] THT Z M
1(0) R B =E1(c) ©

3. WAL RESESE B RHEZBR
- ARFBRARARE [ BT

g

BEXHEBEEN R_ZE—NEXA
Zt+HB ARREERITRAEBER
AARISEAMEREE (EERLES
MEREAERHI SEXVER) 2 B 15 - FE BB AR 15
MERET BEREESRPEED
EXVEBET RS EAME AR A KR
BTz T miERS AR (BEREZER
HEKEMNBEBEXEEWR B E EH
BZERIAR) ABARDLHN
AR BIRIEE F K HE & H 36521 £
GEZZMZEAESIAR  RIBIE
GEM_E TR Bl ZB5. 4616 = 555.67 16 FTill B
BESEERTREBENSARRNR
Bt X P 2 A s SR B o



INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
COMPANY

As at 30 June 2018, so far as was known to the Directors,

the interests and short positions of the persons (other than the
interests and short positions of the Directors or chief executive of
the Company as disclosed above) in the shares and/or underlying
shares of the Company (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company are set out below:

Interests in the Shares and underlying Shares

Number of Shares/

FTERRREMATREQAR
RANESZRKAR

RZBE-NFRA=Z+B REEMR
A BREXRBEZRNRRAREELITHLE
HER AR IN AT ATREARFRK
Wk SEERD (EERERRHAT
fERBISEXVER) BB iR BN AN R AR B &
H RHIBGRMIFEBIGRAFEZE LM
N HERTHEARARR 2 EELRE
LI

RO REBERD 2 EE

Approximate
percentage of
shareholdings

Capacity underlying Shares held as at 30 June 2018
RZB-N\&
AB=+H
FER®R, s RE
g6 HERDZHE BOEA
Substantial Shareholders
FERR
Mr. LI Chun® Interest of controlled corporation 8,212,443,151(1) 92.83%
THELD ZEHEE R 544,241,573(S) 6.15%
Lead Ahead® Beneficial owner 2,132,420,382(1) 24.10%
EmlA A 544,241 ,573(S) 6.15%
Victory Mind Assets® Beneficial owner 2,728,582,769(L) 30.84%
EnBBA
Ace Leader® Interest of controlled corporation 2,728,582,769(L) 30.84%
REGEEER
Jumbo Top® Interest of controlled corporation 2,728,582,769(L) 30.84%
ZEHEE R
TMF® Trustee 2,728,582,769(L) 30.84%

RFEA
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Number of Shares/

Approximate
percentage of
shareholdings

Capacity underlying Shares held as at 30 June 2018
R=ZE-N\&
AAB=1H
g PR B
5% L BOEA
Dragon City® Trustee 3,351,440,000() 37.88%
ZEEA
Cititrust® Trustee 3,351,440,000(L) 37.88%
ZEEA
Other Persons
HEftA+
China Construction Interest of controlled corporation 544,241,573
Bank Corporation XEGEEER
B IRTT Person having a security interest in 3,512,443,151
gl - NG| shares
RRDFEREERZ AL
4,056,684, 7245(L) 45.85%
Central Huijin Investment Ltd. Interest of controlled corporation 544,241,573
HRESKRE R EER
BREELA Person having a security interest 3,512,443,151
in shares
KRB HEEREERZZ AL
4,056,684, 7245(L) 45.85%
Ministry of Finance of Interest of controlled corporation 926,190,476 10.47%
the People’s Republic of China & #22 & % B 4 2%
22 A B LA B B AP
Mr. MA Chi Seng Beneficial owner 617,000,0007(L) 6.97%

BEREE BRBEAA

(L)-and (S) represent long position and short position respectively

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
FNPBEERBERRLS
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Notes:

Mr. Li Chun is deemed to be interested in the long positions of 1.
8,212,443,151 Shares in aggregate through his interests in

Lead Ahead, Victory Mind Assets and Dragon City, respectively

and the short position of 544,241,573 Shares through his

interests in Lead Ahead, as follows:

the long position of 2,132,420,382 Shares and the
short position of 544,241,573 Shares are held by Lead
Ahead, which is owned as to 60% by Mr. Li Ning and
40% by Mr. Li Chun;

the long position of 2,728,582,769 Shares in which
Victory Mind Assets is interested in comprises (i)
1,680,022,769 Shares held by Victory Mind Assets
and (i) 1,048,560,000 Shares which may be issued
on the basis of a full exercise of conversion rights at a
conversion price of HK$0.325 per Share attaching to
the convertible bonds issued to Victory Mind Assets by
the Company in November 2013. Victory Mind Assets is
owned as to 57% by Ace Leader and 38% by Jumbo
Top. All shares of Jumbo Top are held by TMF in its
capacity as trustee of a discretionary trust. Mr. Li Chun
is the settlor of the trust and is therefore deemed to be
interested in such 2,728,582,769 Shares. Mr. Li Qilin is
a beneficlary of the trust and is also therefore deemed
to be interested in such 2,728,582,769 Shares. Mr. Li
Chun is also a director of each of Victory Mind Assets
and Jumbo Top; and

23k % 435 38 DA T B Lead Ahead - Victory
Mind Assets & Dragon City%> Bl 4% B # 25 M
Wik A%EA A $£8,212,443,151 B B {7
178 2 ek KB B Lead Aheads B 42
2 1 42 4R B HE A5544,241 5730 AR 17
B R

(@

2,132,420,382 D 47 B &
544,241,573/ AR 17 7% & H Lead
Ahead$% 7 * i Lead Aheadfh 2= 8
SHERFEILEDRIEE0
R A0%R% #E

Victory Mind AssetsiE &
2,728,582, 769/ ik 15 4F B #&
=+ & B ¥E()Victory Mind Assets
BT ¥ A 21,680,022, 7698% A% 17
EiEAXRABTR_TE—ZF
+— A@Victory Mind Assets# 7T
ZAIBRBRESFME 2 ER
EREIRESTRR%H0.325%
TEBETEMA TETLZ
1,048,560,000 8% & 17 ° Victory
Mind Assets7> Bll R Ace Leader &
Jumbo Top#E H557% K 38%HE 75 ©
Jumbo TopZ: ERAR 1 8 TMFLA B 1E
BRZETAFHER - TH
SEBZETZENA Bt
WAR AP E 2,728,582, 7698%
ROFHEE R B
BZERZZEAN B I
8 AR Eili2,728,582,7698% A%
DREBREE - FTHEEENB
Victory Mind Assets 2 Jumbo Top&:
BZERE R
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() the'long position of 3,351,440,000 Shares in
which Dragon City is interested in comprises (i)
2,000,000,000 Shares held by Dragon City and (ii)
1,351,440,000 Shares which may be issued on
the basis of a full exercise of conversion rights at a
conversion price of HK$0.325 per Share attaching
to the convertible bonds issued to Dragon City by the
Company in November 2013. Dragon City is interested
in such 3,351,440,000 Shares in its capacity as
trustee of a unit trust, the units of which are owned as to
60% by Cititrust and as to 40% by Cititrust, each as the
trustee of a separate trust. Mr. Li Qilin is a beneficiary
of one of the said separate trusts and is also therefore
deemed to be interested in such 3,351,440,000
Shares. Mr. Li Chun is taken to be interested in 40% of
the shares of Dragon City and is therefore deemed to be
interested in such 3,351,440,000 Shares. Mr. Li Chun
is a director of Dragon City.

Lead Ahead is owned as to 60% by Mr. Li Ning and 40% by his
brother, Mr. Li Chun. Mr. Li Ning is also a director of Lead Ahead.

See note 1(b) under “Interests and short positions of directors
and the chief executive in the shares and underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations” and
note 1(b) above. For avoidance of doubt and double counting,

it should be noted that Ace Leader, Jumbo Top and TMF are
deemed to be interested in the 2,728,582,769 Shares which
Victory Mind Assets is interested in.

See note 1(c) under ‘Interests and short positions of directors
and the chief executive in the shares and underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations”
and note 1(c) above. Cititrust is deemed to be interested in the
3,351,440,000 Shares which Dragon City is interested in.

"VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
FNPBEERBERRLS

(© Dragon City# &3,351,440,000
MR 07 A #E % & R B E ()
Dragon City$¥ A 2.2,000,000,000
RO ERINERXRBRZFT
— =%+ — A mDragon CityZ
TOMRESFM 2 Bk
EEBRESRRKRMKB0.3258
TEZBTEMN TEITZ
1,351,440,0008% B% {5 o L it
3,351,440,0008% A% 13 £ Dragon
CiyfE R BRI Est 2 XL AT
AR MER{EFLZE
iz R CititrusttE BB B LEER
AT D B A60%K%40% °
TRB LR EREF—(E
BAUERzZm A BT
AR E3i3,351,440,0008% B
DAREEEZR FTHELER
18 5 % A Dragon City,Z 40% Y A%
MR B R AR Ll
3,351,440,000% A% {5 H # & #
5 o B3 S 4 A Dragon Cityz &
%o

Lead Ahead R F L A R BB Z i 5%
45 B E60% R 40%A HE - ZEBAL A
T AlLead Ahead 2 B ©

RIBERITHRARR A AR REME
BB 2 IR0 RABB RO R EEE
ZHEBmRKBE] —SHHFEI0) R EX
1D - ARERMREETE
=255 ¥ = Ace Leader + Jumbo Top K2 TMF#
15 AR Victory Mind AssetsFT # B # 2 2
2,728,582,7698 A& 15 R HE A 2k o

BIEERITHRAZNARFRER
BEEE 2 iy RAARERR D R EREE

s RKR | — M EE1 (o) R £ SCH
1(c) ° Cititrust3% 48 £ 7 Dragon CityFfr #E B
2% 2 3,351,440,0008% i% 15 0 ¥ 5
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Such long position includes unlisted and physically settled
derivative interests in 544,241,573 underlying Shares and is
held by Cheer Hope Holdings Limited (“Cheer Hope"). Cheer
Hope is wholly-owned by CCBI Investments Limited which is

in turn wholly-owned by CCB International (Holdings) Limited
(“CCB International”). CCB International is wholly-owned by CCB
Financial Holdings Limited (“CCB Financial”) and CCB Financial is
wholly-owned by CCB International Group Holdings Limited (“CCB
Holdings”). CCB Holdings is wholly-owned by China Construction
Bank Corporation (“CCBC") which is in turn owned as to 57.11%
by Central Huijin Investment Ltd (“Huijin"). Huijin is deemed to
be interested in the 4,056,684,724 Shares which CCBC is
interested in.

According to the corporate substantial shareholder notice filed
to the Stock Exchange by Ministry of Finance of the People's
Republic of China ("MOF"), MOF is deemed to be interested in
such long position of unlisted and physically settled derivative
interests in 926,190,476 underlying Shares held by Lake Tai
Investment Holdings Limited which is in turn wholly-owned by
Huarong (HK) International Holdings Limited. China Huarong
International Holdings Limited is owned as to 88.10% and
11.90% by Huarong Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Huarong Real
Estate”) and Huarong Zhiyuan Investment & Management Co.,
Ltd. ("Huarong Zhiyuan") respectively. Both Huarong Real Estate
and Huarong Zhiyuan are wholly-owned by China Huarong Asset
Management Co., Ltd. which is in turn owned as to 77.49% by
MOF.

Mr. Ma Chi Seng was interested in 500,000,000 Shares and
the share options of the Company entitling to subscribe for a
total of 132,000,000 Shares as at 20 January, 2017. Following
the lapse of some of his share options entitling to subscribe for
a total of 15,000,000 Shares in September 2017, Mr. Ma Chi
Seng was interested in 500,000,000 Shares and the share
options of the Company entitling to subscribe for a total of
117,000,000 Shares as at 30 June 2018.

I 47 & B 38 1A544,241,57 3% 48 B8 Ik
MZIELETMRABEY R R ZTET
B ## 25 30 R Cheer Hope Holdings Limited
(ICheer Hope J) ¥ ° Cheer HopeFs
CCBI Investments Limited 2 & #E 4 + M CCBI
Investments Limited 81 £ 32 $R BIFR (5 A% )
ERAR ([BRRER])ZEEF -
RERBRITERIERAER AR ([
el 2ERARBRITERBBRETT
B EEERERAR ([BITER])
2EHA -BITERATFHEEZRRT
BROBRAT ([FRERRZRT])Z
BRI EERRITAI AP RE
cREAREARAR([ES])EHR
57.11%Em - BB RNPRERER
8 17 % 5 # %% 24,056,684, 724R% A% 15
PGS

R HE A AR A B B B (B
BB 1) Bk A PR 22 2 VA B K AR R i AN
£ BB AR YEP Lake Tai Investment
Holdings Limited$¥ & = 5% % 926,190,476
HQ*EE@HQ@Z?EL%&M?%QW
ZMTETAgERPHEEHAER
Lake Tai Investment Holdings L\m\tedE'JEEEE
A (&EE)H V%*HQEBE@:J%;Q%E
BT RERBEZERERAT S A
HERBEXEAREERD T(EEHEE
¥ RERBEREEEEREEA
A ([ERBUE ) HEAH88.10%5%11.90%
Bm o ERMBERERBEAAPEH
EREEEEROAERARNZER
A MABREREEEERNARRD
A1 81 B B BB B 77 49% M 5 o

R-ZB—+tE—B-+RH BEKE
4 $2500,000,0008% AR {5 K 28 2 7] B AR
7 (FE T # % 7] R B A $£132,000,000
Hxﬁx@)qﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ"\fi +&F
nﬂ NE BB BRI (R 4 A AT
%:.,\15 000,0008% A% 15 ) 2K %44
567? NENA=Z+TBEEEREE
#2500,000,0008% A% 15 & 748 2 7] B AR 4
(T HEFITT R B%:.,\Wooooooﬁﬁ
A& ) R A 2
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As at 30 June 2018, save as disclosed above, so far as was
known to the Directors, no other person (other than the Directors
or chief executive of the Company) had any interests or short
position in the shares and/or underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 29 June 2010, the Company passed an ordinary resolution
to adopt a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) for
the purpose of providing incentives to participants to contribute
to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit high-calibre
employees and/or attract human resources that are valuable

to the Group. Participants of the Share Option Scheme include
employee, officer, agent, consultant, business associate or
representative of the Company or any subsidiary or otherwise
contributes to the success of the Group, including any executive,
non-executive or independent non-executive director of the
Company or any subsidiary who, as the Board or a committee
comprising Directors and members of the senior management of
the Company (as the case may be) may determine in its absolute
discretion, is regarded as valuable human resources of the Group
based on his working experience, knowledge in the industry and
other relevant factors, and subject to such conditions as the
Board or such committee (as the case may be) may think fit.
The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of ten
years commencing on 29 June 2010.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Particulars of the share options under the Share Option Scheme BE-_ZT—N\FXA=+HLAEAR"

and their movements during the six months ended 30 June R EI T B IE R EEH T
2018 are set out below: m
Number of Share Options
BREHA
Cancelled/
Exercised lapsed
Balance as at during during Balance as at
Date of Grant 1.1.2018 the period the period 30.06.2018
R® R
—E-N\E —E-N\%
-A—-H RER ~A=tH
REBH & RERTE i3 VS £y
Directors
Bz
LI Ning 02.07.2013 3,000,000 = = 3,000,000
£ 20.01.2017 6,000,000 S - 6,000,000
CHAN Ling 02.07.2010 2,000,000 - S 2,000,000
RE 02.07.2013 30,000,000 = = 30,000,000
20.01.2017 40,000,000 - - 40,000,00010)
LI Chunyang 02.07.2010 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
X 02.07.2013 26,000,000 - - 26,000,000
20.01.2017 20,000,000 - - 20,000,000
LI Qilin 02.07.2013 4,000,000 - - 4,000,000
FHB 20.01.2017 87,000,000 - - 87,000,000¢%
CHAN James 02.07.2013 10,000,000 (5,000,000) = 5,000,000
FRi& B 20.01.2017 6,000,000 S - 6,000,000
MA Wing Man 02.07.2010 333,334 - - 333,334
51597 02.07.2013 2,688,000 (1,188,000) - 1,500,000
20.01.2017 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000
CHEN Johnny 02.07.2010 333,334 - - 333,334
BRER 02.07.2013 3,000,000 (1,500,000) - 1,500,000%¢!
20.01.2017 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000
LIEN Jown Jing, Vincent 20.01.2017 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000
ERE
260,354,668 (7,688,000) "2 - 252,666,668
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Number of Share Options

BREHE
Cancelled/
Exercised lapsed
Balance as at during during Balance as at
Date of Grant 1.1.2018 the period the period 30.06.2018
R R®
—E-N\%F —E-N\E
-A-H RER ~A=1H
REBH 53] RERITHE G VS et
Other employees
Hitfg8
In aggregate 02.07.2010 1,133,334 - - 1,133,334
CH
In aggregate 06.09.2010 2,800,000 - - 2,800,000
CH
In aggregate 02.07.2013 47,000,000 (22,996,000) - 24,004,000
CH
In aggregate 20.06.2014 14,708,000 (3,796,000) (1,304,000) 9,608,0007
CH
In aggregate 20.01.2017 53,600,000 (912,000) - 52,688,000
CH
119,241,334 (27,704,000) 20 (1,304,000) 90,233,334
Other grantees
HiRZEA
In aggregate 06.09.2010 800,000 - - 800,000°
Ch
In aggregate 02.07.2013 58,880,000 (2,584,000) - 56,296,000
Ch
In aggregate 20.01.2017 131,900,000 (192,000) - 131,708,000
Ch
191,580,000 (2,776,000 "2 = 188,804,000
571,176,002 (38,168,000) (1,304,000) 531,704,002
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Notes:

Exercisable period: from 2 July 2013 to 1 July 2018. ©)

The share options comprised the following: (i) (2)
1,500,000 share options with exercisable period from

2 July 2015 1o 1 July 2018 and (i) 1,500,000 share

options with exercisable period from 2 July 2016 to 1

July 2019,

The share options comprised the following: (i)
15,000,000 share options with exercisable period from
2 July 2015 to 1 July 2018 and (i) 15,000,000 share
options with exercisable period from 2 July 2016 to 1
July 2019,

The share options comprised the following: (i)
13,000,000 share options with exercisable period from
2 July 2015 to 1 July 2018 and (i) 13,000,000 share
options with exercisable period from 2 July 2016 to 1
July 2019.

The share options as at 1 January 2018 comprised the
following: (i) 1,188,000 share options with exercisable
period from 2 July 2015 to 1 July 2018 and (ii)
1,500,000 share options with exercisable period

from 2 July 2016 to 1 July 2019. The number of
share options under (i) and (ii) of this note was 0 and
1,500,000 respectively as at 30 June 2018.

AEH: —E—=&+B-_HZE_-F
—NFtHA—Re-

(@
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T— N\F+ A —H 21500000
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-+ A —H 21,500,000 B i%
¥

BRESEUTSHE: ()17
FEHA-—_T—HA&ELA-H
EZT-NFtA—82
15,000,00015 B8 A% 42 K (i) 77 155 HA
BT -RFLAZRHE=ZT
— %+ A— A 215,000,000
R -

ERESBEATEE: ()7
FEHAE-_T—AFLAZ-H
E-Z-N\NFtA—82
13,000,00017 8 A% 4 K (i) 17152 EA
BT -—R"FLtAZRHE=ZT
— L%+ A— A 213,000,000
7B AR I -

RZZE-N\GF—A—BZER
BBREATEE: ((1TESHR
—E-RFtLtAZHE=ZZT
—N\&+ A—HB 1,188,000/

BRERNTESRA=ZZT—X
FrA-BE-_Z-AF+A

— B 21,500,000 i A% 1 - A&
B 5 () e ()T 2 B RR BB R
ZE-NFEXRNA=THNHA
05 %1,500,00017
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The share options as at 1 January 2018 comprised the
following: (i) 1,500,000 share options with exercisable
period from 2 July 2015 to 1 July 2018 and (i)
1,500,000 share options with exercisable period

from 2 July 2016 to 1 July 2019. The number of
share options under (i) and (i) of this note was 0 and
1,500,000 respectively as at 30 June 2018.

The share options comprised the following: (i)
2,000,000 share options with exercisable period from
2 July 2015 to 1 July 2018 and (il) 2,000,000 share
options with exercisable period from 2 July 2016 to 1
July 2019,

The share options as at 1 January 2018 comprised the
following: (i) 5,000,000 share options with exercisable
period from 2 July 2015 to 1 July 2018 and (ii)
5,000,000 share options with exercisable period

from 2 July 2016 to 1 July 2019. The number of
share options under (i) and (ii) of this note was 0 and
5,000,000 respectively as at 30 June 2018.

The share options comprised the following: (i)
3,000,000 share options with exercisable period from
20 January 2017 to 19 January 2019; (i) 1,500,000
share options with exercisable period from 20 January
2018 to 19 January 2020; and (i) 1,500,000 share
options with exercisable period from 20 January 2019
to 19 January 2021,

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

NP E

ZRBERL T

RZE-N\F—A—AZER
ERELNTEE: ((fTEHA
—ET-RFE+LtA-BE_ZT
— \¥F+ A— A8 21,500,000
BRERNTERRA=-T—X
F+tA-HE-ZT—HhELA
— A Z21,500,00017 i A% 4 o A
B & () B (i) 7B 2 BB AR E 2R B R
—E-NFRNA=ZTHSAAE
0% %1,500,000173 °
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(b) The share options comprised the following: (i)
20,000,000 share options with exercisable period
from 20 January 2017 to 19 January 2019; (ii)
10,000,000 share options with exercisable period
from 20 January 2018 to 19 January 2020; and (iii)
10,000,000 share options with exercisable period from
20 January 2019 to 19 January 2021.

(c) The share options comprised the following: (i)
10,000,000 share options with exercisable period from
20 January 2017 to 19 January 2019; (i) 5,000,000
share options with exercisable period from 20 January
2018 to 19 January 2020; and (ili) 5,000,000 share
options with exercisable period from 20 January 2019
to 19 January 2021,

(d) The share options comprised the following: (i)
43,500,000 share options with exercisable period
from 20 January 2017 to 19 January 2019; (i)
21,750,000 share options with exercisable period
from 20 January 2018 to 19 January 2020; and (i)
21,750,000 share options with exercisable period from
20 January 2019 to 19 January 2021.

The share options comprised the following: (i) 400,000
share options with exercisable period from 6 September
2013 to 5 September 2018; (ii) 1,200,000 share options
with exercisable period from 6 September 2014 to

5 September 2019; and (iii) 1,200,000 share options with
exercisable period from 6 September 2015 to 5 September
2020.

(b) BRESENT&E: (1T
HA-ZT—+t&—HA=+H
E-T-hAFE—A+thBZ
20,000,0001% & A& 4 5 (i)fT{E
BHAEA-ZT—-—NF—HA=+H
E-T-TF—At+tANABZ
10,000,00017 B AR 48 + Bz (i) 71T 158
BHA-ZT—-—hh&—A=+H
E-ZT-_—%—A+NB2Z
10,000,000 B A% 42 -

© BRIEBCEATEE: ()T
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E-T-hAhFE—A+thB2Z
10,000,00017 i AR 4 ¢ ()17 6
MAE-—_ZT—NEF—A=+H
E-FT=-TF—-A+ANABZ
5,000,00017 i A% 4 ¢ K ()T (&
HAE-_ZT-NAF—A=+AH
E2-_E-_—%¥—A+NB2
5,000,000 i B #

(d) BRESENTEE: (1T
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2-E-TF—-A+AAZ
21,750,00017 BE AR 4% + R (i) FT1E
WAEA-ZT—hF—A=+8
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21,750,00017 & A% 4 -
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The share options as at 1 January 2018 comprised the
following: (i) 23,500,000 share options with exercisable period
from 2 July 2015 to 1 July 2018 and (i) 23,500,000 share
options with exercisable period from 2 July 2016 to 1 July
2019. The number of share options under (i) and (ii) of this
note was 504,000 and 23,500,000 respectively as at 30 June
2018.

The share options as at 1 January 2018 comprised the
following: (i) 4,804,000 share options with exercisable period
from 20 June 2015 to 19 June 2018; (i) 4,804,000 share
options with exercisable period from 20 June 2016 to 19 June
2019; and (jii) 5,100,000 share options with exercisable period
from 20 June 2017 to 19 June 2020. The number of share
options under (i), (ii) and (i) of this note was 0, 4,804,000 and
4,804,000 respectively as at 30 June 2018.

The share options as at 1 January 2018 comprised the
following: (i) 26,800,000 share options with exercisable period
from 20 January 2017 to 19 January 2019; (ii) 13,400,000
share options with exercisable period from 20 January 2018

to 19 January 2020; and (iii) 13,400,000 share options with
exercisable period from 20 January 2019 to 19 January 2021.
The number of share options under (i), (i) and (iii) of this note
was 25,888,000, 13,400,000 and 13,400,000 respectively as
at 30 June 2018.

Exercisable period: from 6 September 2013 to 5 September
2018.

"VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(10)

(12)

(14)

The share options as at 1 January 2018 comprised the (100 RZZE—N\F—A—Bz2EBRES

following: (i) 29,500,000 share options with exercisable period EATEE: ((TEHA-ZT—AF

from 2 July 2015 to 1 July 2018 and (i) 29,380,000 share tAZREZZ-NFtA—RBZ
options with exercisable period from 2 July 2016 to 1 July 29,500,00017 B8 AR 1 K (1T R A =

2019. The number of share options under (i and (i) of this note T-XFLtAZHE=ZZT—NLFt

was 26,916,000 and 29,380,000 respectively as at 30 June A — B Z229,380,00017 & AR 4 A B

2018. EORiBEZEBREZKER -_Z-N

FXA=1+ A5 514526916,0001 K
29,380,00017 °

The share options as at 1 January 2018 comprised the 1) RZZT-NF—A—HZERERE

following: (i) 65,950,000 share options with exercisable period LATEE: (fTEBHA-S—tF—

from 20 January 2017 to 19 January 2019; (i) 32,975,000 AZ+HBE=ZZE—-hAFE—-—A+NH
share options with exercisable period from 20 January 2018 265,950,000 FEARHE : (NTEEER A=
to 19 January 2020; and (i) 32,975,000 share options with - N\F-—A=Z+HRE-Z=-ZF

exercisable period from 20 January 2019 to 19 January 2021. — A+ B 23297500010 BB A HE : K&

The number of share options under (i), (ii) and (iii) of this note (ifTERA—T—NEF—A=+HE

was 65,758,000, 32,975,000 and 32,975,000 respectively as —ZE=-—F— A+ AN 8232975000

at 30 June 2018. 17 B AR RE o AR PR 3 (1) ~ (i) R (i) TR 2 BB

BEHER=-_ZT—N\FA=1+AH
2 Bl £65,758,0001% * 32,975,0001% &
32,975,00017 °

@ The weighted average closing price immediately before (120 (@ REEBRERITERSEZ
the dates on which the share options were exercised hnE T B R0.87E T
was HK$0.87.

(b) The weighted average closing price immediately before (b) NEEEREETERRAZ
the dates on which the share options were exercised hniE U T (B £0.8978 T
was HK$0.89.

(© The weighted average closing price immediately before () REZEREETERRANZ
the dates on which the share options were exercised hniE T U B R0.8878 T
was HK$0.88.

The exercise prices of the share options are as follows: (13) BREZITEENT:

Date of Grant Exercise Price per Share (HK$)
BEBH BRTEE (BT)
02.07.2010 3.90
06.09.2010 455!
02.07.2013 0.50
20.06.2014 0.80
20.01.2017 0.80
No Share options were granted during the six months ended 30 (14 BEZZT-NFARA=1+HIEAE

June 2018.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the rules set out in Rules 5.48 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules (the “Required Standard”) as the
code for dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors.
The Company has made specific enquiry with all Directors, and
the Directors have confirmed compliance with the Required
Standard throughout the six months ended 30 June 2018.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

For the six months ended 30 June 2018, the Directors are not
aware of any business or interest of the Directors, the controlling
shareholders and their respective close associates (as defined
under the GEM Listing Rules) that compete or may compete
with the business of the Group and any other conflict of interests
which any such person has or may have with the Group.

DISCLOSURE ON CHANGES OF INFORMATION OF
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM Listing Rules, the
changes in details of the Directors’ information subsequent to the
date of the annual report of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2017 are set out below:
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Name Details of Changes

HE BB

Mr. Li Qilin On 19 June 2018, Mr. Li Qilin has been re-designated from a non-executive director to
an executive director of Li Ning Company Limited, the shares of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 2331)

TEB L RZZBE-NFRATIE FEHBEEAEEBFERRAF (K

PRAD BB AP B 70 (BRI RS - 2331) ) ZIERITEFR/ERH

TE=
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining high
standard of corporate governance. The Company had complied
with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
(the "CG Code") during the six months ended 30 June 2018 as
set out in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules, save for the
disclosure below.

The code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the
role of the chairman and the chief executive officer should be
separated and should not be performed by the same individual.
Mr. Li Ning holds both the positions of the chairman and the
chief executive officer of the Company. Taking into account of
Mr. Li's expertise and insight of the sports field, having these two
roles performed by Mr. Li enables more effective and efficient
overall business planning and implementation of business
decisions and strategies of the Group. The Board believes that
the balance of power and authority is ensured by the operations
of the Board, which comprises experienced and high caliber
individuals and adequate independent element in the composition
of the Board, with one-third of them being independent non-
executive Directors.

In respect of the code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code,
independent non-executive Directors and other non-executive
Directors should attend the general meetings of the Company,
two independent non-executive Directors were unable to attend
the annual general meeting of the Company held on 15 June
2018 due to overseas engagement.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) with written terms of reference in compliance with
Rules 5.28 to 5.29 of the GEM Listing Rules. The primary duties
of the Audit Committee are to review the Company’s financial
statements, annual reports, half-year reports, quarterly reports
and risk management and internal control systems and to provide
advice and comments thereon to the Board.
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The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chen Johnny (the Chairman
of the Audit Committee), Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent and Mr.
Wang Yan and one non-executive Director, Mr. Ma Wing Man.
The unaudited consolidated results of the Group for the six
months ended 30 June 2018 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee.

By order of the Board

Viva China Holdings Limited

Li Ning

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 13 August 2018

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises the following
members:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Li Ning (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chan Ling (Chief Operating Officer)

Mr. Li Chunyang

Mr. Li Qilin

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chan James
Mr. Ma Wing Man

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chen Johnny

Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent

Mr. Wang Yan
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